
 

THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4 
2023 ANNUAL REPORT 

 
 

Pursuant to §32-1-207(3), C.R.S and the First Amended and Restated Service Plan for 
The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 (the “District”), the District is required to submit an 
annual report to the Brighton City Clerk not later than March 1 of each calendar year.   
 
For the year ending December 31, 2023, the District makes the following report: 
 

§32-1-207(3) Statutory Requirements 
 

1. Boundary changes made. 
 
The District’s boundaries were not changed in the report year.   
 

2. Intergovernmental Agreements entered into or terminated with other governmental 
entities. 
 

Attached as Exhibit A are copies of the District’s Intergovernmental Agreements: 

• Amended and Restated IGA with City of Brighton 
• District Coordinating Services Agreement with The Lakes Metropolitan District 

No. 1 and Nos. 3-6 
• Capital and Operations Cost Pledge Agreement with The Lakes Metropolitan 

District Nos. 1 & 4 
• Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement with The Lakes Metropolitan 

District No. 1 and Nos. 3-6 
 

3. Access information to obtain a copy of rules and regulations adopted by the board. 
 
The District has not adopted any rules or regulations.  
 
Information on the District can be found on the District’s website at 
www.thelakesmetrodistricts.com.  
 

4. A summary of litigation involving public improvements owned by the District. 
 
To our actual knowledge, based on review of the court records in Adams County, 
Colorado and the Public Access to Court Electronic Records (PACER), there is no 
litigation involving the District’s Public Improvements as of December 31, 2023.  
 

5. The status of the construction of public improvements by the District. 
 
Construction of Farmlore North began in 2022.  At year-end, Phase 1 water, sanitary 

http://www.thelakesmetrodistricts.com/


 

sewer, and storm drainage infrastructure were in progress.  
 

6. A list of facilities or improvements constructed by the District that were conveyed or 
dedicated to the county or municipality. 
 
None.  Infrastructure development within the boundaries of the District is not complete, 
dedicated, or accepted by the City 
 

7. The final assessed valuation of the District as of December 31st of the reporting year. 
 
The assessed valuation was $40,670. 
 

8. A copy of the current year’s budget. 
 
A copy of the 2024 Budget is attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
 

9. A copy of the audited financial statements, if required by the “Colorado Local 
Government Audit Law”, part 6 of article 1 of title 29, or the application for 
exemption from audit, as applicable. 
 
The 2023 Audit is in progress and will be provided as a supplement to the annual report 
once completed.  
 
Attached as Exhibit C is a copy of the 2022 Audit. 
 

10. Notice of any uncured defaults existing for more than ninety (90) days under any 
debt instrument of the District. 
 
The District has not received any notice of any uncured events of default by the District 
under any debt instrument in the reporting year. 
  

11. Any inability of the District to pay its obligations as they come due under any 
obligation which continues beyond a ninety (90) day period. 

 
The District has the ability to pay its obligations as they become due and payable. 
 

Service Plan Requirements 
 
1. Boundary changes made or proposed to the District’s boundary as of December 31 

of the prior year. 
 
No boundary changes were made to the District’s boundary during the report year. 

 
 
2. Copy of the District’s budget resolution for the current year and any budget 

amendments from the prior year. 



 

 
A copy of the District’s 2024 Budget Resolution is attached at Exhibit B. 
 
The District did not amend the 2023 Budget. 

 
3. Copy of the District’s rules and regulations, if any, as of December 31 of the prior 

year. 
 
No rules or regulations were adopted by the District during the report year. 

 
4. Copy of any resolutions or Fee schedules adopted by the District relating to the 

imposition of Fees, Public Improvement Fees, or Special Assessments by the 
District. 
 
The District imposed a Capital Facilities Fee and an Operations Fee, copies are attached 
at Exhibit D.  

 
5. Copy of any intergovernmental agreements among the Districts relating to the 

issuance of Debt, the financing of Public Improvements, or the construction, 
operation and maintenance of any of the Public Improvements. 
 
Attached are copies of the District’s Intergovernmental Agreements at Exhibit A: 

• Amended and Restated IGA with City of Brighton 
• District Coordinating Services Agreement with The Lakes Metropolitan District 

No. 1 and Nos. 3-6 
• Capital and Operations Cost Pledge Agreement with The Lakes Metropolitan 

District Nos. 1, 4 
• Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement with The Lakes Metropolitan 

District No. 1 and Nos. 3-6 
 
6. A summary of any litigation which involves the Public Improvements as of 

December 31 of the prior year. 
 
To our actual knowledge, based on a review of the court records in Adams County, 
Colorado and the Public Access to Court Electronic Records (PACER), there is no 
litigation involving the District as of December 31, 2023. 

 
7. Status of the District’s construction of the Public Improvements as of December 31 

of the prior year. 
 
Construction of Farmlore North began in 2022.  At year-end, Phase 1 water, sanitary 
sewer, and storm drainage infrastructure were in progress.  
 

8. A list of all Public Improvements constructed by the District that have been 



dedicated to and accepted by the City as of December 31 of the prior year. 

None.  Infrastructure development within the boundaries of the District is not complete, 
dedicated, or accepted by the City.   

9. A list of all Public Improvements that are owned and/or Operated and 
Maintained by the District, including identification of the standards by which 
the Public Improvements are required to be Operated and Maintained. 

Tracts F, G, K, L, T, U, V, W, X, AA, BB, CC, FF, JJ, KK, LL, PP, QQ were deeded to 
the District via Special Warranty Deed recorded 10.19.23 at Reception No. 
2023000059134. A copy of the Special Warranty Deed is attached as Exhibit E. 

10. Notice of any uncured events of default by the District, which continue beyond a 
ninety (90) day period, under any Debt instrument. 

The District has not received any notice of any uncured events of default by the 
District during the report year. 

11. Any inability of the District to pay its obligations as they come due, in accordance 
with the terms of such obligations, which continue beyond a ninety (90) day period. 

The District has the ability to pay its obligations as they come due. 

12. Any alteration or revision of the proposed schedule of Debt issuance set forth in 
the Financial Plan. 

There has been no alteration or revision of the proposed schedule of Debt issuance set 
forth in the Financial Plan of the First Amended and Restated Service Plan which was 
amended by the Amendment 1 to the First Amended and Restated Service Plan 
approved on September 7, 2021. 

The District issued $20,080,000 Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds Series 2021A 
December 23, 2021 to fund the construction of public infrastructure of Farmlore North.



 

 
EXHIBIT A 

Intergovernmental Agreements 
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AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
 

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT is 
made and entered into by and between the City of Brighton, Colorado, a municipal corporation 
of the State of Colorado (the “City”), and The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4, a 
quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the District was organized to provide those services and to exercise powers 
as are more specifically set forth in the First Amended and Restated Service Plan dated 
December 19, 2017, as amended by that Certain Amendment No. 1 to Service Plan approved on 
September 7, 2021, and as may be further amended from time to time by City approval (the 
“Service Plan”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Service Plan requires the execution of an intergovernmental agreement 
between the City and the District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City and the District are parties to an Intergovernmental Agreement 

between the City and the District entered into in 2017; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City and the District have determined it to be in their best interests to 

enter into this Amended and Restated Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”); and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the covenants and mutual agreements 
herein contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 
 

1. Incorporation by Reference. The Service Plan is hereby incorporated in this 
agreement by this reference.  The District agrees to comply with all provisions of the Service 
Plan, as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with the provisions thereof, and 
Title 32, Article 1, C.R.S. (the “Special District Act”).  

 
2.  Maintenance of Public Improvements.  The District agrees that it shall maintain 

the following Public Improvements, as shown by Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part 
hereof.  

 
3.         Parks and Recreation.  The District is hereby authorized to operate and maintain 

public recreation facilities, community centers, and local parks that are smaller than 5 acres in 
size.  It is intended that the District’s authority to operate and maintain other Public Improvements, 
if any, shall be subject to and performed in accordance with City Approvals. 
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4.         Water Rights/Resources.  To the extent the City requires a developer of property 
within the Project to obtain and/or develop water rights or resources for a non-potable water 
system, the District shall be authorized to accept an assignment of and perform such obligation. 

 
5. Notice to Property Owners.  The District agrees that it shall record a Notice of 

Inclusion in Metropolitan District substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B on all 
property located within the District’s boundaries. 

 
6. Enforcement. The parties agree that this Agreement may be enforced in law, or in 

equity for specific performance, injunctive, or other appropriate relief.  The parties also agree that 
this Agreement may be enforced pursuant to Section 32-1-207, C.R.S. and other provisions of the 
Special District Act granting rights to municipalities or counties approving a service plan of a 
special district. 
 

7. Entire Agreement of the Parties. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the parties and supersedes all prior written or oral agreements, negotiations, or 
representations and understandings of the parties with respect to the subject matter contained 
herein. 
 

8. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended, modified, changed, or terminated 
in whole or in part only by a written agreement duly authorized and executed by the parties hereto. 

 
9. Governing Law; Venue.  The internal laws of the State of Colorado shall govern 

the interpretation and enforcement of this Agreement, without giving effect to choice of law or 
conflict of law principles.  The parties hereby submit to the jurisdiction of and venue in the district 
court in Adams County, Colorado.  In any proceeding brought to enforce the provisions of this 
Agreement, the prevailing party therein shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorneys’ fees, 
actual court costs and other expenses incurred. 

 
10. Beneficiaries. Except as otherwise stated herein, this Agreement is intended to 

describe the rights and responsibilities of and between the named parties and is not intended to, 
and shall not be deemed to confer any rights upon any persons or entities not named as parties. 

 
11. Effect of Invalidity. If any portion of this Agreement is held invalid or 

unenforceable for any reason by a court of competent jurisdiction as to either party or as to both 
parties, such portion shall be deemed severable and its invalidity or its unenforceability shall not 
cause the entire agreement to be terminated. 

 
12. Assignability. Neither the City nor the District shall assign their rights or delegate 

their duties hereunder without the prior written consent of the other party. 
 

13. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement and the rights and obligations created 
hereby shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective 
successors and assigns. 



THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

NO. 4

ATTEST:

By:
Secretary

CITY OF BRIGHTON, COLORADO

By:.
7

Mayor
ATTEST:

3
1611.4600; 1146099



4 
1611. 4600; 1146099 

Exhibit A to Intergovernmental Agreement 

Public Improvements to be Maintained by the District 
 
The improvements the District will be authorized to operate and maintain (in addition to those 
referenced in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of this Intergovernmental Agreement) shall, in accordance with 
Section IV.A.1 of the Amended and Restated Service Plan, be determined in connection with 
future City Approvals. 
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Exhibit B to Intergovernmental Agreement 

NOTICE OF INCLUSION IN METROPOLITAN 
DISTRICT AND POSSIBLE PROPERTY TAX 

CONSEQUENCES 

Legal description of the property; 

See Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated by reference 

This property is located in the following metropolitan district: 

____________ Metropolitan District No. __ (the “District”) 

In addition to standard property tax identified on the next page, this property is subject to a 
metropolitan district mill levy (another property tax) of up to: 

___ mills, subject to Mill Levy Adjustment, as described in the 
District’s Service Plan 

Based on the property’s inclusion in the metropolitan district, a commercial parcel with a sale price 
of $100,000 could result in ADDITIONAL annual property taxes up to: 

$________ 

Based on the property’s inclusion in the metropolitan district, a residential parcel with a sale  
price of $300,000 could result in ADDITIONAL annual property taxes up to: 

$_______ 

The next page provides examples of estimated total annual property taxes that could be due on this 
property, first if located outside the District and next if located within the District. Note: property 
that is not within the District would not pay the ADDITIONAL amount. 

The District’s Board of Directors can be reached as follows; 

[Address, e-mail address and phone number] 

You may wish to consult with: (1) the Adams County Assessor’s Office to determine the specific 
amount of District property taxes currently due on this property; and (2) the District’s Board of 
Directors to determine if the District’s Service Plan has been amended. 
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ESTIMATE OF PROPERTY TAXES 

Annual Tax Levied on Commercial Property with $100,000 Actual Value Without  the 
District Mill Levy 

Taxing Entity 
Mill Levies 

(20__**) 
Annual Tax 

Levied 
Adams County   
City of Brighton   
Rangeview Library District   
Central Colorado 
Water Conservancy 
District   
Brighton Fire District No. 6   
School District No. 27   
Urban Drainage South Platte   

Urban Drainage and 
Flood Control   
TOTAL   

Annual Tax Levied on Commercial Property with $100,000 Actual Value With the District 
Mill Levy  (Assuming Maximum District Mill Levy) 

Taxing Entity 
Mill Levies 

(20__**) 
Annual Tax 

Levied 
Adams County   
City of Brighton   
Rangeview Library District   
Central Colorado 
Water Conservancy 
District   
Brighton Fire District No. 6   
School District No. 27   
Urban Drainage South Platte   
Urban Drainage and 
Flood Control   
__________ Metropolitan District   
TOTAL   
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Annual Tax Levied on Residential Property with $300,000 Actual Value Without    
the District Mill Levy 

Taxing Entity 
Mill Levies 

(20__**) 
Annual Tax 

Levied 
Adams County   
City of Brighton   
Rangeview Library District   
Central Colorado 
Water Conservancy 
District   
Brighton Fire District No. 6   
School District No. 27   
Urban Drainage South Platte   
Urban Drainage and 
Flood Control   
TOTAL   

Annual Tax Levied on Residential Property with $300,000 Actual Value With the    District Mill 
Levy (Assuming Maximum District Mill Levy) 

Taxing Entity 
Mill Levies 

(20__**) 
Annual Tax 

Levied 
Adams County   
City of Brighton   
Rangeview Library District   
Central Colorado 
Water Conservancy 
District   
Brighton Fire District No. 6   
School District No. 27   
Urban Drainage South Platte   
Urban Drainage and 
Flood Control   
 
__________ Metropolitan District   
TOTAL   

 
**This estimate of mill levies is based upon mill levies certified by the Adams County Assessor’s Office in 
December 20__ for collection in 20__ and is intended only to provide approximations of the total overlapping 
mill levies within the District. The stated mill levies are subject to change and you should contact the Adams 
County Assessor’s Office to obtain accurate and current information. 
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EXHIBIT A 
TO NOTICE OF INCLUSION IN METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

The Property 

 
 



THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
ADAMS COUNTY, COLORADO 

DISTRICT LOCATION MAP 
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT REGARDING COST SHARING 

AND REIMBURSEMENT 

This INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT REGARDING COST 
SHARING AND REIMBURSEMENT (the "Agreement") is entered into as of the 8th day 
of June, 2021, by and between THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1, a quasi-
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (referred to as 
"District No. 1") and THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NOS. 3-6, each a quasi-
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (individually referred 
to as “District No. 3,” “District No. 4,”  “District No. 5” and “District No. 6”), collectively 
referred to herein as the “District Nos. 3-6,” “the Districts” or “the Parties”.) 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, District Nos. 1, 3 and 4 (together with The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 
2 (“District No. 2”), which is not a party to this Agreement) were organized in 2007 and each 
operate pursuant to their First Amended and Restated Service Plans (“Amended and 
Restated Service Plans”) as approved by the City Council of the City of Brighton (the 
“City”) on December 19, 2017, as may be amended form time to time, and are each quasi-municipal 
corporations and political subdivisions of the State of Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, District Nos. 5 and 6 were organized in 2018 and operate pursuant to 
their respective Service Plans (“District Nos. 5 and 6 Service Plan” and with the “Amended 
and Restated Service Plans” collectively, the “Service Plans”) as approved by the City on 
December 19, 2017, as may be amended from time to time, and are each quasi-municipal 
corporations and political subdivisions of the State of Colorado; and 

WHEREAS, District Nos. 5 and 6 are currently in inactive status but it is anticipated 
that they will become parties to this Agreement by execution of same at such time as said 
districts return to active status as set forth in Section 32-1-104, C.R.S.; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of the Service Plan, the Districts were 
organized for the purposes of the design, acquisition, construction, installation, and financing 
of certain public improvements, as more fully set forth therein (the “Public Improvements”), 
for the development of a 525 acre mixed use development commonly referred to as “The 
Lakes” (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the initial developer of the Project was Brighton Lakes, LLC (“Brighton 
Lakes,” or “BL”), with additional development activities being undertaken by RH Indigo Trails, 
LLLP (“Indigo Trails,” or “IT”); and 

WHEREAS, Brighton Lakes has funded, either directly or by making advances, certain 
costs in connection with the organization of District Nos. 1, 3 and 4 (the “Original 
Organizational Costs”), and certain other capital and administrative costs subsequent thereto 
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(the “BL Capital Costs,” and the “BL Administrative Costs,” respectively.  Collectively 
all such costs shall be referred to as the “BL Prior Costs;” and  

 
WHEREAS, the agreements by which the BL Prior Costs have been advanced (all 

with District No. 1) are that certain “Operations Funding Agreement,” dated March 7, 2007, 
that certain “Project Funding and Reimbursement Agreement,” dated January 22, 2007, that 
certain “Capital Advance and Reimbursement Agreement,” dated November 7, 2008, and 
that certain “Operation Funding Agreement,” dated December 19, 2008 (collectively, the 
“BL Agreements”); and 

 
WHEREAS, Indigo Trails has funded, either directly or by making advances, certain 

costs in connection with the organization of District Nos. 5 and 6 (the “District 5/6 
Organizational Costs”), and certain other capital and administrative costs subsequent thereto 
(the “IT Capital Costs,” and the “IT Administrative Costs,” respectively.  Collectively all 
such costs shall be referred to as the “IT Prior Costs;” and 

 
WHEREAS, the agreement by which Indigo Trails has funded the IT Administrative 

Costs (all with District No. 1) is that certain “2015-2016 Operation Funding Agreement,” dated 
May 21, 2015, as amended by that certain “First Amendment to 2015-2016 Operation Funding 
Agreement,” dated November 9, 2016, and that certain “Second Amendment to 2015-2016 
Operation Funding Agreement,” dated December 11, 2017 (all with District No. 1)(collectively, 
the “2015-2016 OFA”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the agreement with District No. 1 by which Indigo Trails has funded 

District 5/6 Organizational Costs and IT Capital Costs is that certain “Funding and 
Reimbursement (Capital Costs),” dated as of June 8, 2021  (the “2021 Capital Agreement:); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2015-2016 OFA and the 2021 Capital Agreement shall be referred 

to herein as the “IT Agreements:” and 
 
WHEREAS, within this Agreement, the BL Prior Costs and the IT Prior Costs shall 

be known collectively as the “Combined Prior Costs;” and 
 
WHEREAS, District No. 1 is obligated to Brighton Lakes and Indigo Trails to 

reimburse for the Combined Prior Costs advanced by such entities, through the BL 
Agreements and the IT Agreements, with the expectation that District Nos. 3-6 shall 
contribute funds to pay their equitable share of such costs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Districts have participated in an analysis of the timing and total amount 

of the Combined Prior Costs for the purpose of arriving at a fair and equitable allocation of such 
amounts among the Districts, such amounts excluding any allocable share of costs to District No. 
2; and 
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WHEREAS, the resulting allocations of the Combined Prior Costs to each District from 
such analysis are attached as Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
(the “Allocable Amount”); and 

WHEREAS, District Nos. 3-6 each desire to contribute funds to reimburse District 
No. 1 for their portion of the Allocable Amount of the BL Prior Costs and the IT Prior Costs, 
in order to permit District No. 1 to meet its obligations to reimburse Brighton Lakes and 
Indigo Trails for such costs; and  

WHEREAS, in the absence of available funds, District Nos. 3-6 each intend to repay 
their respective Allocable Amount from bond proceeds, to the extent legally available, or from any 
other lawful financing mechanism including pledged revenues from an ad valorem tax mill levy or any 
other legally available revenues; and 

WHEREAS, District Nos. 3-6 do not have other financial resources to provide 
funding for payment of the BL Prior Costs and the IT Prior Costs; and  

WHEREAS, in order to provide a mechanism to secure the payment of their 
respective Allocable Amount, District Nos. 3-6 desire to issue to District No. 1, as hereinafter 
provided, one or more reimbursement notes, bonds, bond anticipation notes, or capital pledge 
agreements, (“Reimbursement Obligations”) in an aggregate principal amount sufficient to 
repay their Allocable Amount, subject to the terms and conditions set forth therein; and  

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that at the time District Nos. 3-6 issue a Reimbursement 
Obligation for their respective Allocable Amount, District No. 1 and the issuing District will 
enter into a separate agreement to set forth the terms, revenue streams used and priority of 
payment; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with the Service Plan, the Districts entered into the 
District Coordinating Services Agreement dated June 19, 2018 (the “Coordinating Services 
IGA”), which sets forth each District respective roles and responsibilities to the provision of 
administrative services, and ownership, operation and maintenance of the Public 
Improvements from the date of that Agreement and into the future in an effort to operate in 
the most cost effective manner and efficient way as possible; and  

WHEREAS, the obligations of the Districts under the Coordinating Services IGA are 
separate from the obligations of this Agreement, and the obligations of this Agreement are in 
addition thereto, with any priority relative to the payment of amounts under the Coordinating 
Services IGA and this Agreement to be determined at the time District Nos. 3-6 enter into a 
separate agreement with District No. 1 for the payment of amounts due hereunder (which 
may consist of one or more Reimbursement Obligations); and  
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WHEREAS, District No. 1 and District No. 3 entered into the Capital Improvements 
Pledge Agreement on June 15, 2020 , as amended by that certain First Amendment to Capital 
Improvements Pledge Agreement dated June 8, 2021 (the “Capital Pledge Agreement”), 
pursuant to which District No. 3 pledged its Capital Improvements Levy, as defined therein, 
to District No. 1 for the purpose of funding its share of certain capital improvements, such 
pledge being subordinate to any obligation of District No. 3 to pay amounts due hereunder, 
including any Reimbursement Obligation issued under this Agreement; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article XIV, Section 18 of the Colorado Constitution and 
Section 29- 1-203, C.R.S., the Districts are authorized to cooperate and contract with each 
other to provide functions, services, and facilities of the Districts, including the sharing of 
costs; and 

WHEREAS, the Districts find that entering into this Agreement is in the best interests 
of the Districts and its future residents and taxpayers. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
Districts agree as follows: 

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

1. Incorporation of Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are hereby incorporated into
this Agreement as an integral part hereof. 

2. Inactive Districts.  District Nos. 5 and 6 are not currently authorized to enter into
or approve this Agreement because they are inactive under the Special District Act. 
Notwithstanding, it is the intent of the Districts that District Nos. 5 and 6 be bound by the terms 
contained herein upon return to active status, without affecting the enforceability of this Agreement 
against the other Districts.  Accordingly, at such time as District Nos. 5 and 6 approve this 
Agreement, an addendum shall be issued for signature by District Nos. 5 and 6.  References to “the 
Districts” in this Agreement regarding various terms and conditions, shall, as to District Nos. 5 and 
6, be subject to the return to active status of each such District, and approval of this Agreement 
thereby. 

3. Allocable Amount.   The Districts each agree that the Allocable Amount
identified for each District represents a fair and equitable allocation of the Combined Prior 
Costs, based on the work performed, the time of performance, and the contribution of such 
work to the continued functioning and good standing of the Districts under their respective 
Service Plans, the Special District Act, and other applicable law.  The Districts agree that 
District No. 2 is not a party to this Agreement and that no cost allocable to District No. 2 are 
included in the Allocable Amount.  The methodology by which the Combined Prior Costs were 
distributed among the Districts is also set forth in Exhibit A.  Such methodology and the 
resulting distribution of costs has been reviewed by the Districts’ accountant for use in this 
manner. 
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4. Reimbursement. 

(a) Generally.  The Districts acknowledge that, as of the date hereof, the BL 
Prior Costs and the IT Prior Costs continue to accrue simple interest at the rate of 6% per 
annum until paid in full by District No. 1 or discharged. In consideration of the obligation of 
District No. 1 to reimburse Brighton Lakes and Indigo Trails for the BL Prior Costs and the IT 
Prior Costs, District Nos. 3-6 each agree to pay District No. 1 their respective Allocable 
Amount, plus simple interest thereon at the rate of 6% per annum, until paid.  Until converted 
to a Reimbursement Obligation as set forth below, such commitment shall be subject to annual 
appropriation and shall not constitute an indebtedness or multiple fiscal year financial 
obligation under any statutory or Constitutional provision.  

(b) Terms of Payment; Source of Revenues. District Nos. 3-6 intend to pay 
the Prior District Costs from bond proceeds to the extent legally available, or from any other 
lawful financing mechanism including pledged revenues from an ad valorem tax mill levy or 
any other legally available revenues, and in the interim from one or more Reimbursement 
Obligations as set forth in Paragraph 4(d) hereof.  

(c) Issuance of New Debt. District Nos. 3-6 agree that when, in the discretion 
of their respective boards of directors, it becomes appropriate to issue general obligation bonds 
for the financing of the Districts’ obligations, and except as may otherwise be agreed to by 
District No. 1, the proceeds from any such bonds shall be applied first to the payment of any 
outstanding Reimbursement Obligation, then to the balance of their respective Allocable 
Amount, if any, until such amount is paid in full.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, District No. 
1 and District No. 3 agree and acknowledge that the obligations hereof with respect to District 
No. 3 shall be senior to the obligations of the District No. 3 under the Capital Pledge 
Agreement, unless separately agreed by District No. 1. 

(d) Reimbursement Obligations 

i. Issuance of Reimbursement Obligations. District Nos. 3-6 hereby 
agree to issue to or at the direction of District No. 1, one or more Reimbursement Obligations 
constituting an indebtedness or multiple fiscal year financial obligation to provide for long-
term reimbursement for each respective District’s Allocable Amount.  Such Reimbursement 
Obligations shall be payable from legally available sources identified in the Reimbursement 
Obligations, which shall include, but not be limited to (except as otherwise agreed to by District 
No. 1), ad valorem property tax revenues of each District, and shall be secured by each 
District’s pledge to apply such revenues towards repayment of the District’s Allocable Amount 
as required hereunder. Simple interest shall accrue on the principal amount thereof at the rate 
of 6% per annum, until paid in full. The term for repayment of any Reimbursement Obligation 
issued under this Agreement shall be the maximum term authorized by the issuing District’s 
Service Plan and otherwise subject to the issuing District’s electoral authority. 

The issuance of any Reimbursement Obligation shall be subject to the availability 
of an exemption from the registration requirements of § 11-59-106, C.R.S., and shall be subject to 
such prior filings with the Colorado State Securities Commissioner as may be necessary to claim 
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such exemption, in accordance with § 11-59-110, C.R.S., and any regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 

5. No Debt/Annual Appropriation.  It is hereby agreed and acknowledged that the
financial obligations of this Agreement, until such time as converted to a Reimbursement 
Obligation as hereinbefore provided, shall not constitute a debt or indebtedness of any of the 
Districts within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision, nor shall it constitute a 
multiple fiscal year financial obligation, and the making of any reimbursement hereunder shall be 
at all times subject to annual appropriation by the applicable District in its discretion.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event a court of competent jurisdiction determines that any 
term of this Agreement constitutes a multi-fiscal year financial obligation or other obligation 
requiring voter authorization under Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution, District Nos. 
3 and 4 hereby affirm that each such District has sufficient voter authorization for the obligations 
imposed on each such District under this Agreement.    Additionally, to the extent TABOR so 
requires, any District’s failure to appropriate funds in any given fiscal year will not be deemed or 
construed to constitute a default by the District under this Paragraph 5.  Any District’s failure to 
appropriate funds in any given fiscal year will not be deemed or construed to effect a discharge of 
the District’s obligation to pay the Allocable Amount in any subsequent fiscal year, and interest 
will continue to accrue on the unpaid principal of such Allocable Amounnt as provided herein. 

6. Modification and Termination. This Agreement may be modified, altered,
amended or terminated only by written consent of the Districts. 

7. Entire Agreement. This Agreement embodies the complete agreement between
the Districts regarding the subject matter herein and supersedes all prior agreements and 
understandings, if any. 

8. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The Districts do not intend to benefit any person
not a party to this Agreement. No person or entity, other than the Districts, shall have any right, 
legal or equitable, to enforce any provision of this Agreement. 

9. Assignment. Neither District shall assign the Agreement in whole or in part.
Any purported assignment or delegation in violation of the provisions hereof shall be void and 
ineffectual.  

10. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or
unenforceable, no other provision shall be affected by such holding and all of the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect to the extent practicable. 

11. Waiver. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed
to constitute a waiver of any other provisions of this Agreement, nor shall such waiver 
constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided herein, nor shall the waiver 
of any default herein be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default herein. 

12. Notices.  All notices, demands and communications (collectively, “Notices”) under
this Agreement shall be delivered or sent by: (a) first class, registered or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested, (b) nationally recognized overnight carrier, addressed to the 
address of the intended recipient set forth below or such other address as either party may designate 
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by notice pursuant to this Section 14, or (c) sent by confirmed facsimile transmission, PDF or email. 
Notices shall be deemed given either one business day after delivery to the overnight carrier, three 
(3) days after being mailed as provided in clause (a) above, or upon confirmed delivery as provided
in clause (c) above.

District No. 1: The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 1 
c/o WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law  
2154 East Commons Avenue, Suite 2000 
Centennial, Colorado 80122 
Attention: William P. Ankele, Jr. Esq. 
(303) 858-1800 (phone)
(303) 858-1801 (fax)
wpankele@wbapc.com

District Nos. 3-6: The Lakes Metropolitan District Nos. 3-6  
c/o WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law  
2154 East Commons Avenue, Suite 2000 
Centennial, Colorado 80122 
Attention: William P. Ankele, Jr. Esq. 
(303) 858-1800 (phone)
(303) 858-1801 (fax)
wpankele@wbapc.com

13. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed under the laws
of the State of Colorado. 

14. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each
of which shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same document. 

15. Effectiveness.  District Nos. 1, 3 and 4 agree and acknowledge that this Agreement
shall be effective among them without the execution hereof by District Nos. 5 and 6, which are 
presently inactive and unable to act.  Furthermore, this Agreement shall be effective among District 
Nos. 1, 3 and 4 regardless of whether District No. 5 and/or 6 approve this Agreement, since the 
obligations of the Districts are equitably distributed and payment by any individual District shall 
not affect the payment obligation of any other District. 

[Signature Pages Follow] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date and year 
first above written.  By the signature of its representative below, each party affirms that it has taken 
all necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this Agreement. 

DISTRICT NO. 1: 

THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1,  
a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado 

 
    
Officer of the District 

ATTEST: 
 
   

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys at Law 

General Counsel to the District 

DISTRICT NO. 3: 

THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 3,  
a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision 
of the State of Colorado 

 
    
Officer of the District 

ATTEST: 
 
   

[1 of 2 Signature Pages to Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Cost Sharing and 
Reimbursement] 

Erika Volling (Aug 16, 2021 14:36 MDT)
Erika Volling

Erika Volling (Aug 16, 2021 14:36 MDT)
Erika Volling

Michael Richardson (Aug 16, 2021 14:39 MDT)
Michael Richardson

Michael Richardson (Aug 16, 2021 14:39 MDT)
Michael Richardson
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DISTRICT NO. 4: 

THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4, 
a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado 

 
    

ATTEST: 

 
    

[2 of 2 Signature Pages to Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Cost Sharing and 
Reimbursement] 

Erika Volling (Aug 16, 2021 14:36 MDT)
Erika Volling

Michael Richardson (Aug 16, 2021 14:39 MDT)
Michael Richardson

ATTEST: 

_____________________________

Officer of the District 

DISTRICT NO. 5: 

THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 5, 
a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado.

__________________________________________ 
Officer of the District

DISTRICT NO. 6:

THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 6, 
a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado.

_________________________________________ 
Officer of the District

ATTEST:

_____________________________
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EXHIBIT A 
 

Description of Prior District Costs 
(Organizational and Administrative Costs) 

 

 





 

EXHIBIT B 

2024 Budget 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 

Statement of Net Position 

September 30, 2023 General Fund Debt Service Fund Capital Fund 

Fixed Assets & 

LTD Total 

ASSETS 

CASH 

Checking 49,088 49,088 

ColoTrust 2,010 2,010 

Bond Payment Fund 2021A 4,205 4,205 

Project Fund 2021A - 5,731,233 5,731,233 

Pooled Cash (49) 49 - 1 

TOTAL CASH 1,961 4,255 5,780,322 - 5,786,537 

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 

Due From County Treasurer - - -
Property Tax Receivable 0 1 1 

Prepaid Expense - - -
Due From District No. 1 - -

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 0 1 - - 1 

FIXED ASSETS 

Construction in Progress 2,819,555 2,819,555 

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS - - - 2,819,555 2,819,555 

TOTAL ASSETS 1,961 4,256 5,780,322 2,819,555 8,606,094 

LIABILITIES & DEFERRED INFLOWS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable - 1,453,198 1,453,198 

Retainage Payable 619,678 619,678 

Due To District No. 1 976 100 1,076 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 976 - 2,072,976 - 2,073,953 

DEFERRED INFLOWS 

Deferred Property Taxes 0 1 1 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 0 1 - - 1 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Bonds Payable - Series 2021A 20,080,000 20,080,000 

Developer Payable- Operations - -
Developer Payable- Capital - -
Accrued Int- Developer Payable- Ops - -
Accrued Int- Developer Payable- Cap - -
Accrued Int- 2021 A Bonds 92,033 92,033 

Accrued But Unpaid Int- 2021 A Bonds 1,036,170 1,036,170 

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - - - 21,208,203 21,208,203 

TOTAL LIAB & DEF INFLOWS 976 1 2,072,976 21,208,203 23,282,157 

NET POSITION 

Investment in Capital Assets 2,819,555 2,819,555 

Amount to be Provided for Debt (21,208,203) (21,208,203) 

Fund Balance- Non-Spendable - -
Fund Balance- Restricted - 4,255 3,707,345 3,711,600 

Fund Balance- Unassigned 985 985 

TOTAL NET POSITION 985 4,255 3,707,345 (18,388,648) (14,676,063) 

= = = = =

No assurance is provided on these financial statements; 

substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 1 

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4
Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2023

ASSETS
CASH

Checking 49,088                     49,088                    
ColoTrust 2,010                       2,010                       
Bond Payment Fund 2021A 4,205                       4,205                       
Project Fund 2021A -                           5,731,233               5,731,233               
Pooled Cash (49)                           49                            -                           1                               

TOTAL CASH 1,961                       4,255                       5,780,322               -                           5,786,537               

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Due From County Treasurer -                           -                           -                           
Property  Tax Receivable 0                               1                               1                               
Prepaid Expense -                           -                           -                           
Due From District No. 1 -                           -                           

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 0                               1                               -                           -                           1                               

FIXED ASSETS
Construction in Progress 2,819,555               2,819,555               

TOTAL FIXED ASSETS -                           -                           -                           2,819,555               2,819,555               

TOTAL ASSETS 1,961                       4,256                       5,780,322               2,819,555               8,606,094               

LIABILITIES & DEFERRED INFLOWS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable -                           1,453,198               1,453,198               
Retainage Payable 619,678                  619,678                  
Due To District No. 1 976                          100                          1,076                       

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 976                          -                           2,072,976               -                           2,073,953               

DEFERRED INFLOWS
Deferred Property Taxes 0                               1                               1                               

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 0                               1                               -                           -                           1                               

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Bonds Payable - Series 2021A 20,080,000             20,080,000             
Developer Payable- Operations -                           -                           
Developer Payable- Capital -                           -                           
Accrued Int- Developer Payable- Ops -                           -                           
Accrued Int- Developer Payable- Cap -                           -                           
Accrued Int- 2021 A Bonds 92,033                     92,033                    
Accrued But Unpaid Int- 2021 A Bonds 1,036,170               1,036,170               

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES -                           -                           -                           21,208,203             21,208,203             

TOTAL LIAB & DEF INFLOWS 976                          1                               2,072,976               21,208,203             23,282,157             

NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets 2,819,555               2,819,555               
Amount  to be Provided for Debt (21,208,203)           (21,208,203)           
Fund Balance- Non-Spendable -                           -                           
Fund Balance- Restricted -                           4,255                       3,707,345               3,711,600               
Fund Balance- Unassigned 985                          985                          

TOTAL NET POSITION 985                          4,255                       3,707,345               (18,388,648)           (14,676,063)           
= = = = =

 General Fund  Debt Service Fund  Capital Fund 
 Fixed Assets & 

LTD  Total 

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 1



The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 

Statement of R evenues, Expenditures, & Changes In Fund Balance 

Modified Accrual Basis For the Period Indicated 

Print Date: 1/2/24 

PROPERTY TAXES 

2022 

Audited 

Actual 

2023 

Adopted 

Budget 

Variance 

Positive 

(Negative) 

2023 

Forecast 

YTD Thru 

09/30/23 

Actual 

YTD Thru 

09/30/23 

Budget 

Variance 

Positive 

(Negative) 

2024 

Adopted 

Budget Budget Notes/Assumptions 

Assessed Valuation 83,310 71,820 71,820 40,670 Final AV 2023 

Mill Levy - Operations 10.946 11.297 - 11.297 12.394 10 Mills Adjusted 

Mill Levy - Debt Service Fund 54.731 56.484 - 56.484 61.968 50 Mills Adjusted 

Total Mill Levy 65.677 67.781 - 67.781 74.362 

Property Tax Revenue - Operations 912 811 - 811 504 10 Mills Adjusted 

Property Tax Revenue - Debt Service Fund 4 560 4,057 - 4 057 2 520 50 Mills Adjusted 

Total Property Taxes 5,472 4,868 - 4,868 3,024 Total of 60 Mills Adjusted 

No assurance is provided on these financial statements; 

substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 2 

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 Print Date: 1/2/24
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & Changes In Fund Balance
Modified Accrual Basis For the Period Indicated

2022 2023 Variance YTD Thru YTD Thru Variance 2024
Audited Adopted Positive 2023 09/30/23 09/30/23 Positive Adopted
Actual Budget (Negative) Forecast Actual Budget (Negative) Budget Budget Notes/Assumptions

PROPERTY TAXES

Assessed Valuation 83,310            71,820            71,820            40,670            Final AV 2023

Mill Levy - Operations 10.946             11.297             -                   11.297             12.394             10 Mills Adjusted
Mill Levy - Debt Service Fund 54.731             56.484             -                   56.484             61.968             50 Mills Adjusted

Total Mill Levy 65.677            67.781            -                   67.781            74.362            

Property Tax Revenue - Operations 912                  811                  -                   811                  504                  10 Mills Adjusted
Property Tax Revenue - Debt Service Fund 4,560               4,057               -                   4,057               2,520               50 Mills Adjusted

Total Property Taxes 5,472               4,868               -                   4,868               3,024               Total of 60 Mills Adjusted

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 2



No assurance is provided on these financial statements; 
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 3 

= 

COMBINED FUNDS 

2022 
Audited 
Actual 

2023 
Adopted 
Budget 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 
2023 

Forecast 

YTD Thru 
09/30/23 

Actual 

YTD Thru 
09/30/23 

Budget 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

2024 
Adopted 
Budget Budget Notes/Assumptions 

REVENUE 
Property taxes 5,463 4,868 - 4,868 4,867 4,868 (1) 3,024 Total of 60 Mills Adjusted 
State Property Tax Backfill - - - - - - - 16 65% of Lost Taxes From SB 22-238 
Specific ownership taxes 371 292 - 292 221 195 26 121 4% of Property Taxes 
Facility Fees - - 120,000 120,000 - - - 394,000 $2,000 Per Unit- Based on Number of Units Above 
Transfer From District No. 1 - - - - - - - 8,300,000 Estimated Funding Available From District No. 1 
Transfer From District No. 3 - - - - - - - - District 3 Taxes Pledged to District No. 1 in 2024 
Interest & other income 318,969 344,250 (4,070) 340,180 462,573 341,688 120,885 120,650 Interest earnings on bond funds 

TOTAL REVENUE 324,803 349,410 115,930 465,340 467,660 346,750 120,910 8,817,811 

EXPENDITURES 
Administration 

Accounting, Audit, & Legal - - - - - - - - Provided by District No. 1 
Treasurer's fees 82 73 - 73 73 73 (0) 45 1.5 % of Property Taxes 
Election - - - - - - - - Provided by District No. 1 
Insurance, bonds & SDA dues - - - - - - - - Provided by District No. 1 
Miscellaneous - - - - - - - - Provided by District No. 1 
Transfer to District No. 1 1,043 848 848 - - 832 832 264 Net Available For Transfer 
Emergencies & Contingency - 10,250 10,250 - - 7,688 7,688 10,500 Emergencies & Contingency 

Debt Service 
Bond interest 739 239 (4,084) 4,323 - - - - Amount Available for Interest Payments 
Bond principal - - - - - - - -
Debt issuance expense & trustee fees - 4,000 - 4,000 4,000 4,000 - 4,000 Annual Trustee Fee 

Capital Outlay 2,874,319 16,676,900 1,857,413 14,819,487 13,308,044 16,057,733 2,749,689 10,997,501 See Capital Fund 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,876,183 16,692,310 1,864,427 14,827,883 13,312,118 16,070,325 2,758,208 11,012,310 

REVENUE OVER / (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (2,551,380) (16,342,900) 1,980,357 (14,362,543) (12,844,457) (15,723,575) 2,879,118 (2,194,499) 

OTHER SOURCES / (USES) 
Developer advances - 2,441,478 (2,441,478) - - - - -
Bond proceeds - - - - - - - -

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES / (USES) - 2,441,478 (2,441,478) - - - - -

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (2,551,380) (13,901,422) (461,122) (14,362,543) (12,844,457) (15,723,575) 2,879,118 (2,194,499) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 19,108,422 13,901,422 2,655,620 16,557,042 16,557,042 13,901,422 2,655,620 2,194,499 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 16,557,042 - 2,194,499 2,194,499 3,712,585 (1,822,154) 5,534,738 (0) 

COMPONENTS OF FUND BALANCE 
Non-Spendable - - - - - - Prepaid Insurance & SDA Dues Paid By District No. 1 
TABOR Emergency Reserve - - - - - - Not Required as All Funds Transferred to #1 
Restricted For Debt Service 4,054 - - - 4,255 - Surplus& Capitalized Interest Funds 
Restricted For Capital Projects 16,552,988 - 2,193,501 2,193,501 3,707,345 (0) Assume All Bond Funds Used on Construction 
Unassigned - - 998 998 985 0 

TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE 16,557,042 - 2,194,499 2,194,499 3,712,585 (0) 

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 Print Date: 1/2/24
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & Changes In Fund Balance
Modified Accrual Basis For the Period Indicated

2022 2023 Variance YTD Thru YTD Thru Variance 2024
Audited Adopted Positive 2023 09/30/23 09/30/23 Positive Adopted
Actual Budget (Negative) Forecast Actual Budget (Negative) Budget Budget Notes/Assumptions

COMBINED FUNDS
REVENUE

Property taxes 5,463               4,868               -                   4,868               4,867               4,868               (1)                     3,024               Total of 60 Mills Adjusted
State Property Tax Backfill -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   16                    65% of Lost Taxes From SB 22-238
Specific ownership taxes 371                  292                  -                   292                  221                  195                  26                    121                  4% of Property Taxes
Facility Fees -                   -                   120,000          120,000          -                   -                   -                   394,000          $2,000 Per Unit- Based on Number of Units Above
Transfer From District No. 1 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   8,300,000       Estimated Funding Available From District No. 1
Transfer From District No. 3 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   District 3 Taxes Pledged to District No. 1 in 2024
Interest & other income 318,969          344,250          (4,070)             340,180          462,573          341,688          120,885          120,650          Interest earnings on bond funds

TOTAL REVENUE 324,803          349,410          115,930          465,340          467,660          346,750          120,910          8,817,811       

EXPENDITURES
Administration

Accounting, Audit, & Legal -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Provided by District No. 1
Treasurer's fees 82                    73                    -                   73                    73                    73                    (0)                     45                    1.5 % of Property Taxes
Election -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Provided by District No. 1
Insurance, bonds & SDA dues -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Provided by District No. 1
Miscellaneous -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Provided by District No. 1
Transfer to District No. 1 1,043               848                  848                  -                   -                   832                  832                  264                  Net Available For Transfer
Emergencies & Contingency -                   10,250             10,250             -                   -                   7,688               7,688               10,500             Emergencies & Contingency

Debt Service
Bond interest 739                  239                  (4,084)             4,323               -                   -                   -                   -                   Amount Available for Interest Payments
Bond principal -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Debt issuance expense & trustee fees -                   4,000               -                   4,000               4,000               4,000               -                   4,000               Annual Trustee Fee

Capital Outlay 2,874,319       16,676,900     1,857,413       14,819,487     13,308,044     16,057,733     2,749,689       10,997,501     See Capital Fund

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,876,183       16,692,310     1,864,427       14,827,883     13,312,118     16,070,325     2,758,208       11,012,310     

REVENUE OVER / (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (2,551,380)     (16,342,900)   1,980,357       (14,362,543)   (12,844,457)   (15,723,575)   2,879,118       (2,194,499)     

OTHER SOURCES / (USES)
Developer advances -                   2,441,478       (2,441,478)      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Bond proceeds -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES / (USES) -                   2,441,478       (2,441,478)     -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (2,551,380)     (13,901,422)   (461,122)         (14,362,543)   (12,844,457)   (15,723,575)   2,879,118       (2,194,499)     

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 19,108,422     13,901,422     2,655,620       16,557,042     16,557,042     13,901,422     2,655,620       2,194,499       

ENDING FUND BALANCE 16,557,042     -                   2,194,499       2,194,499       3,712,585       (1,822,154)     5,534,738       (0)                     
= = = = = = = =

COMPONENTS OF FUND BALANCE
Non-Spendable -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Prepaid Insurance & SDA Dues Paid By District No. 1
TABOR Emergency Reserve -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Not Required as All Funds Transferred to #1
Restricted For Debt Service 4,054               -                   -                   -                   4,255               -                   Surplus& Capitalized Interest Funds
Restricted For Capital Projects 16,552,988     -                   2,193,501       2,193,501       3,707,345       (0)                     Assume All Bond Funds Used on Construction
Unassigned -                   -                   998                  998                  985                  0                       

TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE 16,557,042     -                   2,194,499       2,194,499       3,712,585       (0)                     
= = = = = =

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 3



The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 Print Date: 1/2/24 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & Changes In Fund Balance 
Modified Accrual Basis For the Period Indicated 

= = = = = = 

No assurance is provided on these financial statements; 
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 4 

GENERAL FUND 

2022 
Audited 
Actual 

2023 
Adopted 
Budget 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 
2023 

Forecast 

YTD Thru 
09/30/23 

Actual 

YTD Thru 
09/30/23 

Budget 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

2024 
Adopted 
Budget Budget Notes/Assumptions 

REVENUE 
Property Taxes - Operations 910 811 - 811 811 811 (0) 504 Total of 60 Mills Adjusted 
State Property Tax Backfill - - - - - 16 65% of Lost Taxes From SB 22-238 
Specific Ownership Taxes 62 49 - 49 37 32 4 20 4% of Property Taxes 
Interest Income 84 250 (100) 150 149 188 (38) 650 To Allow For Contingency Expense 

TOTAL REVENUE 1,056 1,110 (100) 1,010 997 1,031 (34) 1,190 

EXPENDITURES 
Administration 

Accounting - - - - - - - - Provided by District No. 1 
Audit - - - - - - - - Provided by District No. 1 
Legal - - - - - - - - Provided by District No. 1 
Supplies, Bank, Bill.com - - - - - - - - Provided by District No. 1 
Treasurer's Fees 14 12 - 12 12 12 (0) 8 1.5 % of Property Taxes 
Elections - - - - - - - - Provided by District No. 1 
Insurance & SDA Dues - - - - - - - - Provided by District No. 1 
Miscellaneous - - - - - - Provided by District No. 1 
Transfer to District No. 1 1,043 848 848 - - 832 832 264 Net Available For Transfer 
Emergencies - - - - - - - Held In Reserve By District No. 1 
Contingency 250 250 - - 188 188 500 Unforeseen Needs / Additional Revenue 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,056 1,110 1,098 12 12 1,031 1,019 771 

REVENUE OVER / (UNDER) EXPENDITURES - - 998 998 985 - 985 419 

OTHER SOURCES / (USES) 
Transfers In/(Out) - - - - - - - (1,417) Transfer to Fund Shortfall In Trustee Fees 
Developer Advances - - - - - - - -

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES / (USES) - - - - - - - (1,417) 

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE - - 998 998 985 - 985 (998) 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - - - - - - - 998 

ENDING FUND BALANCE - - 998 998 985 - 985 -

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 Print Date: 1/2/24
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & Changes In Fund Balance
Modified Accrual Basis For the Period Indicated

2022 2023 Variance YTD Thru YTD Thru Variance 2024
Audited Adopted Positive 2023 09/30/23 09/30/23 Positive Adopted
Actual Budget (Negative) Forecast Actual Budget (Negative) Budget Budget Notes/Assumptions

GENERAL FUND
REVENUE

Property Taxes - Operations 910                  811                  -                   811                  811                  811                  (0)                     504                  Total of 60 Mills Adjusted
State Property Tax Backfill -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   16                    65% of Lost Taxes From SB 22-238
Specific Ownership Taxes 62                    49                    -                   49                    37                    32                    4                       20                    4% of Property Taxes
Interest Income 84                    250                  (100)                 150                  149                  188                  (38)                   650                  To Allow For Contingency Expense

TOTAL REVENUE 1,056               1,110               (100)                 1,010               997                  1,031               (34)                   1,190               

EXPENDITURES
Administration

Accounting -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Provided by District No. 1
Audit -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Provided by District No. 1
Legal -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Provided by District No. 1
Supplies, Bank,  Bill.com -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Provided by District No. 1
Treasurer's Fees 14                    12                    -                   12                    12                    12                    (0)                     8                       1.5 % of Property Taxes
Elections -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Provided by District No. 1
Insurance & SDA Dues -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Provided by District No. 1
Miscellaneous -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Provided by District No. 1
Transfer to District No. 1 1,043               848                  848                  -                   -                   832                  832                  264                  Net Available For Transfer
Emergencies -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   Held In Reserve By District No. 1
Contingency 250                  250                  -                   -                   188                  188                  500                  Unforeseen Needs / Additional Revenue

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,056               1,110               1,098               12                    12                    1,031               1,019               771                  

REVENUE OVER / (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                   -                   998                  998                  985                  -                   985                  419                  

OTHER SOURCES / (USES)
Transfers In/(Out) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   (1,417)             Transfer to Fund Shortfall In Trustee Fees
Developer Advances -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES / (USES) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   (1,417)             

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   -                   998                  998                  985                  -                   985                  (998)                 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   998                  

ENDING FUND BALANCE -                   -                   998                  998                  985                  -                   985                  -                   
= = = = = = =

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 4
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DEBT SERVICE FUND

2022  
Audited 
Actual

2023 
Adopted 
Budget

Variance  
Positive  

(Negative)
2023 

Forecast

YTD Thru  
09/30/23  

Actual

YTD Thru 
09/30/23 

Budget

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative)

2024  
Adopted 
Budget Budget Notes/Assumptions

REVENUE
Property Taxes 4,552 4,057 - 4,057 4,056 4,057 (1) 2,520 Total of 60 Mills Adjusted
Specific Ownership Taxes 309 243 - 243 184 162 22 101 4% of Property Taxes
Interest Income - 10,000 (9,970) 30 22 7,500 (7,478) 10,000 To Offset Contingency

TOTAL REVENUE 4,861 14,300 (9,970) 4,330 4,262 11,719 (7,457) 12,621

EXPENDITURES
Treasurer's Fees 68 61 - 61 61 61 (0) 38 1.5 % of Property Taxes
Bond Interest- 2021A 739 239 (4,084) 4,323 - - - - Amount Available for Interest Payments
Bond Principal- 2021A - - - - - - - -
Bank Charges - - - - - - -
Paying Agent / Trustee Fees - 4,000 - 4,000 4,000 4,000 - 4,000 Annual Trustee Fee
Cost of Issuance - - - - - - - -
Contingency 10,000 10,000 - - 7,500 7,500 10,000 Unforeseen Needs/ Additional Funds Available

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 807 14,300 5,916 8,384 4,061 11,561 7,500 14,038

REVENUE OVER / (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 4,054 - (4,054) (4,054) 201 158 42 (1,417)

OTHER SOURCES / (USES)
Transfers In/(Out) - - - - - - - 1,417 Transfer to Fund Shortfall In Trustee Fees
Bond Proceeds - - - - - - - -

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES / (USES) - - - - - - - 1,417

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 4,054 - (4,054) (4,054) 201 158 42 -

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE - - 4,054 4,054 4,054 - 4,054 - Project Fund Rolled Forward

ENDING FUND BALANCE 4,054 - - - 4,255 158 4,096 -

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 5
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CAPITAL FUND

2022  
Audited 
Actual

2023  
Adopted  
Budget

Variance 
Positive  

(Negative)
2023 

Forecast

YTD Thru 
09/30/23 

Actual

YTD Thru 
09/30/23  

Budget

Variance  
Positive  

(Negative)

2024  
Adopted  
Budget Budget Notes/Assumptions

Number of Facility Fees Collected:
Taylor Morrison- Single Family - - 60 - Developer Estimate
Century Communities- Single Family - - - 75 Developer Estimate
KB Homes- Duplex - - - 82 Developer Estimate
KB Homes- Single Family - - - 40 Developer Estimate

TOTAL UNITS COLLECTED - - - 60 - - - 197

REVENUE
Transfer From District No. 1 - - - - - 8,300,000 Estimated Funding Available From District No. 1
Transfer From District No. 3 - - - - - - District 3 Taxes Pledged to District No. 1 in 2024
Facility Fees ($2,000 Per Unit) - 120,000 120,000 - - 394,000 $2,000 Per Unit- Based on Number of Units Above
Interest income 318,885 334,000 6,000 340,000 462,402 334,000 128,402 110,000 Based on 5% Interest Rate

TOTAL REVENUE 318,885 334,000 126,000 460,000 462,402 334,000 128,402 8,804,000

EXPENDITURES
Accounting 3,064 20,000 (8,000) 28,000 21,008 15,000 (6,008) 30,000 Based on 2023 Forecast
Legal 37,320 20,000 (18,000) 38,000 28,634 15,000 (13,634) 40,000 Based on 2023 Forecast
Bank Fees 14,380 20,000 (400) 20,400 24,834 15,000 (9,834) 7,000 Roughly 6% of Interest Income
Engineering - - (4,000) 4,000 2,836 - (2,836) 1,000,000 Pre-Construction Engineering
Farmlore Phase 1 Infrastructure 2,819,555 12,991,900 2,177,813 10,814,087 9,906,392 12,991,900 3,085,508 1,250,000 Filing 1 Landscaping in 2024
Farmlore Phase 2 Infrastructure 7,500,000 Preliminary Estimate
Offsite Sewer Line - May Use Funds Above- Depends On Timing
144th Avenue Improvements - 3,625,000 (290,000) 3,915,000 3,324,340 3,020,833 (303,506) -
Transfer to District #1- Cost Sharing - - - - - - - -
Contingency - - - - - 1,170,501 Remaining Estimated Funds Available

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,874,319 16,676,900 1,857,413 14,819,487 13,308,044 16,057,733 2,749,689 10,997,501

REVENUE OVER / (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (2,555,434) (16,342,900) (1,731,413) (14,359,487) (12,845,642) (15,723,733) 2,878,091 (2,193,501)

OTHER SOURCES / (USES)
Transfers From Debt Service Fund - - - - - - - -
Developer Advance - 2,441,478  (2,441,478) - - - - -

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES / (USES) - 2,441,478 (2,441,478) - - - - -

CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (2,555,434) (13,901,422) (458,065) (14,359,487) (12,845,642) (15,723,733) 2,878,091 (2,193,501)

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 19,108,422 13,901,422 2,651,566 16,552,988 16,552,988 13,901,422 2,651,566 2,193,501

ENDING FUND BALANCE 16,552,988 - 2,193,501 2,193,501 3,707,345 (1,822,312) 5,529,657 (0)

No assurance is provided on these financial statements;
substantially all disclosures required by GAAP omitted. Page 6



LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4  

2024 BUDGET MESSAGE  

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS

Services Provided

Through its Service Plan, the District is authorized to finance certain drainage, sanitation, 
water, streets, traffic and safety controls, parks and recreation and mosquito control.

Revenue
District Bond

The primary source of funds for 2024 is a limited tax general obligation bond. The District 
anticipates imposing a mill levy in 2024 for debt service and operations and maintenance.

Expenditures

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses are primarily for legal services, management services, insurance 
and accounting costs.

Funds Available

The District's budget exists from bonds, property tax revenues and developer advances to 
cover the District's operations, including its administrative functions.

Accounting Method

The District prepares its budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting.



 

EXHIBIT C 

2022 AUDIT 

(2023 Audit is in Process) 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Board of Directors 
The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 
 
Opinions 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the major 
funds of The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 
4’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.   
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities and the major funds of The Lakes Metropolitan 
District No. 4 as of December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and the 
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.   
 
Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about The Lakes 
Metropolitan District No. 4’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial 
statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly 
thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 



 
 

 

 
 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we  

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
of the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4’s internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-
related matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
Management has omitted the Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. Our opinions on the basic financial statements are not affected by this missing information. 
 
Other Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4’s financial statements as a whole. The Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual Debt Service Fund, and 
the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances – Budget and Actual Capital 
Projects Fund, as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the financial statements. The other supplemental information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  

 

 
Longmont, Colorado 
May 12, 2023 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Basic Financial Statements 



Assets
Governmental 

Activities

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted 4,998$               
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted 18,436,989        
Due from county treasurer 32                      
Property taxes receivable 4,868                 

Total Current Assets 18,446,887        
Noncurrent Assets

Capital assets
Nondepreciable 2,819,555          

Net Capital Assets 2,819,555          

Total Assets 21,266,442        

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 1,771,508          
Retainage payable 88,066               
Due to District No. 1 25,403               
Accrued interest 1,128,203          

Total Current Liabilities 3,013,180          

General obligation bonds 20,080,000        
Total Long-Term Liabilities 20,080,000        

Total Liabilities 23,093,180        

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred property tax revenue 4,868                 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,868                 

Net Position
Restricted for debt service and capital 16,557,042        
Unrestricted (18,388,648)      

Total Net Position (1,831,606)$      

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
1



Net (Expenses) 
Revenue and 

Changes in Net 
Position

Governmental Activities Expenses
Charges for 

Service

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions
Governmental 

Activities

General government 55,889$              -$                    -$                  (55,889)$              
Interest and related costs on long-term debt 1,104,400           -                       -                    (1,104,400)           

Total Governmental Activities 1,160,289$         -$                    -$                  (1,160,289)$         

General Revenues
Property taxes 5,462                   
Specific ownership taxes 371                      
Interest income 318,970               

Total Revenues 324,803               
Change in Net Position (835,486)              
Net Position - Beginning of Year (996,120)              
Net Position - End of Year (1,831,606)$         

Program Revenues

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
2



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fund Financial Statements 



Non Major 
Fund

General Capital Projects Debt Service

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted 4,998$            -$                    -$                       4,998$            
Cash and cash equivalents - restricted -                      18,436,989     -                         18,436,989     
Due from county treasurer 5                     -                      27                      32                   
Due from other funds -                      -                      4,027                 4,027              
Property taxes receivable 811                 -                      4,057                 4,868              

Total Assets 5,814              18,436,989     8,111                 18,450,914     

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable -                      1,771,508       -                         1,771,508       
Retainage payable -                      88,066            -                         88,066            
Due to other funds 4,027              -                      -                         4,027              
Due to District No. 1 976                 24,427            -                         25,403            

Total Liabilities 5,003              1,884,001       -                         1,889,004       

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred property tax revenue 811                 -                      4,057                 4,868              

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 811                 -                      4,057                 4,868              

Equity
Fund Balance

Restricted -                      16,552,988     4,054                 16,557,042     
Unassigned -                      -                      -                         -                      

Total Fund Balance -                      16,552,988     4,054                 16,557,042     

Total Liabilities, Equity and Deferred Inflows of Resources 5,814$            18,436,989$   8,111$               18,450,914$   

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position

Total Fund Balance 16,557,042$   

2,819,555       

(1,128,203)      

(20,080,000)    
Total Net Position (1,831,606)$    

Amounts reported for governmental funds in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital Assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Accrued interest on long-term debt does not require current financial resources therefore is not reported in the fund 
statements.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not 
reported in the funds statements.

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds 
December 31, 2022

Major Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
3



Non Major 
Fund

General Capital Projects Debt Service

Total 
Governmental 

Funds
Revenues

Property taxes 910$                -$                     4,552$           5,462$            
Specific ownership taxes 62                    -                       309                371                 
Interest income 85                    318,885           -                    318,970          

Total Revenue 1,057               318,885           4,861             324,803          

Expenditures
Operations

Accounting -                       3,064               -                    3,064              
Legal -                       37,320             -                    37,320            
Bank charges -                       14,380             -                    14,380            
Treasurer's fees 14                    -                       68                  82                   
Transfers to District No. 1 1,043               -                       -                    1,043              

Capital Outlay -                       2,819,555        -                    2,819,555       
Debt Service

Bond interest expense -                       -                       739                739                 
Total Expenditures 1,057               2,874,319        807                2,876,183       

Net Change in Fund Balance -                       (2,555,434)       4,054             (2,551,380)      

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year -                       19,108,422      -                    19,108,422     
Fund Balance, End of Year -$                     16,552,988$    4,054$           16,557,042$   

(2,551,380)$    

Accrued interest (1,103,661)      

2,819,555       
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (835,486)$       

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Total Change in Fund Balance Governmental Fund

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and are 
not reported in the fund statements.

Capital outlay to purchase or build capital assets is reported in governmental funds as an expenditure.  However, for 
governmental activities those costs are shown in the Statement of Net Position and allocated over their useful lives.

Major Funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
4



 Original and 
Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues

Property taxes 912$                  910$                  (2)$                     

Specific ownership taxes 55                      62                      7                        

Interest income 250                    85                      (165)                   

Total Revenue 1,217                 1,057                 (160)                   

Expenditures

Treasurer's fees 14                      14                      -                         

Transfers to District No. 1 953                    1,043                 (90)                     

Contingencies 250                    -                         250                    

Total Expenditures and Transfers 1,217                 1,057                 160                    

Net Change in Fund Balance -                         -                         -                         

Beginning Fund Balance -                         -                         -                         
Ending Fund Balance -$                       -$                       -$                       

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022
Budget and Actual - General Fund

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
5



The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 
Notes to Financial Statements  

December 31, 2022 
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 (the District), a quasi-municipal corporation and a 
political subdivision of the State of Colorado, is governed pursuant to provisions of the 
Colorado Special District Act.  The District’s service area is located in the City of 
Brighton, Colorado (City).  The District was established primarily to provide for the 
planning, design, financing, acquisition, and construction of certain public 
improvements.  The District anticipates that all, or some, of the improvements may be 
dedicated to the City, or its designee.  The District was formed concurrently with The 
Lakes Metropolitan District Nos. 1 – 3 and 5 – 6 (collectively, the “Districts”.  It is 
anticipated that the Districts will undertake the financing and construction of 
Improvements contemplated in the Districts’ Service Plans. Specifically, the Districts 
shall enter into one or more intergovernmental agreements which shall govern the 
relationships between and among the Districts with respect to the financing, 
construction, and operation and maintenance, as appropriate, of the Improvements 
contemplated in the Districts’ Service Plans. 

The District has no employees and all operations and administrative functions are 
contracted. 

Financial Reporting Entity 
In accordance with governmental accounting standards, the District has considered the 
possibility of inclusion of additional entities in its financial statements.  The definition of 
the reporting entity is based primarily on financial accountability.  The District is not 
financially accountable for any other entity, nor is the District a component unit of any 
other governmental entity; therefore, no other entities are included in the District’s 
financial statements. 

Basis of Presentation 
The District’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, 
including a statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund financial 
statements, which provide a more detailed level of information. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about 
the District as a whole.  These statements include the financial activities of the primary 
government.  The statement of net position presents the financial position of the 
governmental activities at the end of the year.  The statement of activities presents a 
comparison between program expenses and the program revenue for each program or 
function of the District’s governmental activities.  Program expenses are those that are 
specifically associated with a service, program or department; and therefore, clearly 
identifiable to a particular function.  Program revenue includes charges paid by the 
recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants, and contributions that 
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.  
Revenues which are not classified as program revenue are presented as general 
revenue of the District.  The comparison of program expenses with program revenue 
identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from 
the general revenue of the District. 
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Fund Accounting 
During the year the District segregates transactions related to certain District functions 
or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate 
legal compliance.  Fund financial statements are designed to present financial 
information of the District at this more detailed level.  The focus of governmental fund 
financial statements is on major funds.  Fund types used by the District are described 
below.  The major funds of the District are the General Fund and the Capital Projects 
Fund. 
 
Governmental Fund Type 
General Fund –is the general operating fund of the District.  It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Capital Projects Fund- accounts for the revenues received related to the construction 
and acquisition of capital projects.   
 
Debt Service Fund- accounts for the repayment of long-term debt incurred by the 
district.   

Measurement Focus 

Government-wide Financial Statement 
The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  All assets and liabilities 
associated with the operation of the District are included in the statement of net 
position. 

Fund Financial Statements 
All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  With this 
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on 
the balance sheet and only revenues that are available within 60 days are recorded in 
the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance.   

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance reports on 
the sources (revenue and other financing sources) and uses (expenditures and other 
financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in 
which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are 
prepared.  Governmental fund financial statements therefore include a reconciliation 
with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide 
statements and the statements for governmental funds.   

Differences in the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the 
recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of 
expenses versus expenditures. 
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Basis of Accounting (continued) 
The District follows the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements – and Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis – for State and Local Governments as amended by Statement No. 61 The 
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and 
No. 34 and Statement No. 63 Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position.  These statements establish 
standards for external financial reporting for all state and local governmental entities 
which includes a management’s discussion and analysis section; a statement of net 
position; a statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position; and a 
statement of cash flows.  It requires the classification of net position into three 
components:  net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. 
 
Revenue 
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives 
essentially the same value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes 
place.  On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the fiscal year in which the 
resources are both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the fiscal 
period, which is typically within sixty days of realization. 

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving 
value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations.  Revenue 
from property tax is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.  
Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in 
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.  On a modified accrual basis, 
revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be 
recognized.   

Property Taxes 
The County Treasurer collects and remits property taxes to the District monthly.  
Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.  Taxes are 
levied for the current year prior to December 31 and are payable in full on April 30 of the 
subsequent year, or in two installments on February 28 and June 15.  Property taxes 
are recorded as receivables and deferred revenue when levied.  As taxes are collected, 
the receivable and deferral are reduced and income is recognized. 

Expenses/Expenditures 
On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are 
incurred.  The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in 
net financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses.  Expenditures are 
generally recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if 
measurable.  Allocations of costs, such as depreciation and amortization, are not 
recognized in governmental funds. 
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Basis of Accounting (continued) 

Assets and Liabilities 
Cash and cash equivalents - the District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to 
be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short term investments with maturities of 90 
days or less at the date of their acquisition. 

Investments – investments are recorded at fair value, which approximates cost. 

Receivables – all receivables are reported at their book value and, where appropriate, 
are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible. 

Capital assets – all capital assets are stated at cost or estimated cost.  The 
capitalization threshold for fixed assets is $5,000.  Depreciation of the estimated useful 
lives of the assets is computed using the straight-line method.  Estimated useful lives 
range from 5-40 years for capital assets.   

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset 
or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized. 

Accrued Liabilities and long-Term Obligation 
All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements.  In general, governmental fund payables and 
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from 
current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds.   

Deferred Inflows of Resources and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
The District implemented the provisions of GASB No. 65 Items Previously Reported as 
Assets and Liabilities (GASB 65).  As a result in addition to assets, the statement of net 
position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period (deferred outflow) or the 
acquisition of net position that applies to future periods (deferred inflows).   
 
Net Position 
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components: 
  
a. Net investment in capital assets – consists of capital assets including restricted 
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by the outstanding 
balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to 
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 
 
b. Restricted net position – consists of net position with constraints placed on the use 
either by (1) external groups, such as creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other 
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  The 
District utilizes restricted net position before utilizing unrestricted net position when an 
expense is incurred for both purposes. 
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Basis of Accounting (continued) 

c. Unrestricted net position – all other net position that does not meet the definition of 
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”  The net position is available for future 
operations or distributions. 
 
Fund Balance 
Nonspendable - consists of amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) 
not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.  
The nonspendable fund balance was $0 as of December 31, 2022. 

Restricted - General Fund - Article X, Section 20 of the Constitution of the State of 
Colorado (TABOR) requires the District to establish Emergency reserves (see Note 6).  
A reservation of $0 of the General Fund balance has been made in compliance with this 
requirement.  The District had $16,552,988 restricted for the use of acquisition and 
construction of public improvements and $4,054 restricted for the use of debt service.   

Committed - General Fund - Committed fund balance includes those items which can 
be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the 
Board of Directors.  Those committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose 
unless the Board of Directors formally removes or changes the specified uses.  The 
District had a committed fund balance of $0 as of December 31, 2022. 

Assigned – Includes all amounts that are constrained by the District’s intent to be used 
for a specific purpose but are neither committed nor restricted.  The assignment of 
these balances must occur through a formal action of the Board of Directors.  As of 
December 31, 2022, the assigned fund balance was $0.  

Unassigned - consists of the residual classification for each fund.  This represents 
amounts that have not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, 
committed, or assigned for specific purposes. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s 
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.   

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
Budgets are adopted on a cash basis except for accrual of current vendor invoices.  
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the fund.  All annual appropriations lapse 
at fiscal year-end.   

The District adheres to the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data 
reflected in the financial statements: 

• Budgets are required by state law for all funds.  The budget includes proposed 
expenditures and the means of financing them.  All budgets lapse at year-end. 

• Prior to December 31, the budget is adopted by formal resolution. 

• Budgets are required to be filed with the State of Colorado within thirty days.    
after the beginning of the fiscal year. 

• Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level. 

• The District Board must approve revisions that alter the total expenditures of any 
fund. 



The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 
Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) 

December 31, 2022 
 

11 
 

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (Continued) 

• Budgeted amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements are as 
originally adopted by the District Board or amended by the District Board. 

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures.  
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Note 2 Cash and Investments 
Cash Deposits 
As of December 31, 2022, the District’s cash deposits had a carrying balance of $54 
with a corresponding bank balance of $60,814, all of which is federally insured. 

The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local 
government deposit cash in eligible public depositories.  Eligibility is determined by 
state regulations.  Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be 
collateralized.  The eligible collateral is specified under the PDPA.  PDPA allows the 
institution to create a single collateral pool for all public funds.  The pool for all the 
uninsured public deposits as a group is to be maintained by another institution or held in 
trust.  The market value of the collateral must be at least equal to 102% of the 
uninsured deposits.  The District had $0 collateralized under PDPA. 

The Colorado Divisions of Banking and Financial Services are required by statute to 
monitor the naming of eligible depositories and reporting of the uninsured deposits and 
assets maintained in the collateral pools. 

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits  
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits 
may not be returned to it.  The District does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit 
risk.  As of December 31, 2022, none of the District’s bank deposits were exposed to 
custodial credit risk. 
 
Investments 
Colorado statutes specify in which investment instruments the units of local government 
may invest: 

• Obligations of the United States and certain United States government agency 
securities. 

• Certain international agency securities. 

• General obligation and revenue bonds of United States local government entities. 

• Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks. 

• Commercial paper. 

• Local government investment pools. 

• Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities. 

• Certain money market funds. 

• Guaranteed investment contracts. 
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Note 2 Cash and Investments (Continued) 

At December 31, 2022, the District had $18,441,933 invested in the Colorado Local 
Government Liquid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST) (the Trust), an investment vehicle 
established for local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus funds. The State 
Securities Commissioner administers and enforces all State statutes governing the 
Trust. The Trust offers shares in three portfolios, COLOTRUST PRIME, COLOTRUST 
PLUS+, and COLOTRUST EDGE.   

COLOTRUST PRIME and COLOTRUST PLUS+ - The Trust operates similarly to a 
money market fund and each share is equal in value to $1.00. Both portfolios may 
invest in U.S. Treasury securities and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. 
Treasury securities. COLOTRUST PLUS+ may also invest in certain obligations of U.S. 
government agencies, highest rated commercial paper and any security allowed under 
section 24-75-601, C.R.S., as amended.  

COLOTRUST EDGE - The Trust operates similarly to a money market fund and each 
share is equal in value to $10.00.  The portfolio may invest in U.S. Treasury securities 
and repurchase agreements collateralized by U.S. Treasury securities, certain 
obligations of U.S. government agencies, highest rated commercial paper and any 
security allowed under CRS 24-75-601.  

A designated custodial bank serves as custodian for the Trust’s portfolios pursuant to a 
custodian agreement. The custodian acts as safekeeping agent for the Trust’s 
investment portfolios and provides services as the depository in connection with direct 
investments and withdrawals. The custodian’s internal records segregate investments 
owned by the Trust. COLOTRUST is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s and is 
measured at net asset value (NAV).  There are no unfunded commitments, the 
redemption frequency is daily, and there is no redemption notice period. 
 
As of December 31, 2022, the Board had not adopted a formal investment policy. 
 
Note 3 Capital Assets 

Balance at 

12/31/2021 Additions  Deletions 

Balance at 

12/31/2022

Nondepreciable

Construction in progress -$                  2,819,555$   -$                2,819,555$   

Total Nondepreciable -                    2,819,555     -                  2,819,555     

Net Capital Assets -$                  2,819,555$   -$                2,819,555$   

Note 4 Long-term Debt 
The District's long-term debt is as follows: 
 
Series 2021A Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds (the Bonds) totaling 
$20,080,000 dated December 23, 2021, with interest of 5.50%.  The Required Mill Levy 
for the Bonds is capped at 50 mills subject to adjustments for changes in the ratio of 
actual value to assessed value of the property within the District.  Required Mill Levy 
means an ad valorem mill levy imposed upon all taxable property of the District each 
year in an amount sufficient to pay the principal, premium if any, and interest on the 
Bonds as the same become due and payable.  The Bonds are cash flow bonds,  
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Note 4 Long-term Debt (Continued) 
meaning that interest and principal to the extent of pledged revenue available is due 
annually on December 1 of each year.  To the extent principal of any Bond is not paid 
on or prior to the maturity date of such Bond, such principal will remain outstanding and 
will continue to bear interest at the rate then borne by the Bond and to the extent 
interest on any Bond is not paid when due, such interest is to be compound on each 
interest payment date, at the rate then borne by the Bond; provided, however, that 
notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, the District is not to be 
obligated to pay more than the amount permitted by law and its electoral authorization 
in repayment of the Bonds, including all payments of principal, premium if any, and 
interest, and all Bonds will be deemed defeased and no longer outstanding upon the  
payment by the District of such amount.  The Bonds are also subject to mandatory 
redemption from available pledge revenue.    
 

Date of Redemption Redemption Premium

December 1, 2026 to November 30, 2027 3.00%

December 1, 2027 to November 30, 2028 2.00%

December 1, 2028 to November 30, 2029 1.00%

December 1, 2029 and thereafter 0.00%

 
The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the District, as a 
whole or in integral multiples of $1,000, on December 1, 2026 and on any date 
thereafter subject to a redemption premium which expires on December 1, 2029 
 
The Bonds are secured by and payable from the Pledged Revenue, meaning monies 
derived by the District from the following sources, net of any collection costs: 1) the 
Required Mill Levy, 2) the portion of the Specific Ownership Tax which is collected as a 
result of the imposition of the Required Mill Levy, and 3) any other legally available 
monies which the District determines to be treated as Pledged Revenue.  Any amounts 
remaining outstanding after December 2, 2061 will be discharged. 
 
 
The Changes in Long-term Debt during 2022 were as follows: 

Amounts
Balance Balance Due Within

12/31/2021 Additions Reductions 12/31/2022 One Year
Series 2021A Bonds 20,080,000$   -$                   -$               20,080,000$  -$              

Total Long-term Debt 20,080,000$   -$                   -$           20,080,000$  -$              

Due to the nature of the repayment schedule of the bonds a future repayment schedule 
cannot be determined.   

Note 5 Agreements 
Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Cost Sharing and Reimbursement 
On June 8, 2021, the District and The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 1 (District No.1) 
entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement Regarding Cost Sharing and 
Reimbursement, in which district numbers 3-6 has agreed to reimburse combined prior  
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Note 5 Agreements (Continued) 
costs advanced by District No. 1 which were allocated to each respective district.   The 
prior costs will accrue at a simple interest rate of 6% per annum until fully paid.  The 
District paid District No. 1 $1,043 for the year ended December 31, 2022 related to the 
District’s portion of the prior costs as outlined in this agreement. 
 
District Coordinating Services Agreement 
On June 19, 2018 the District entered into a District Coordinating Services Agreement.  
This agreement establishes District No.1 as the coordinating district and the District, 
District No. 3, District No. 5, and District No. 6 each as a financing district.  As part of 
the agreement the coordinating district agreed to perform the administrative services for 
the Financing Districts and the coordinating district will own, operate and maintain all  
public improvements within the boundaries of the Districts that are not otherwise 
dedicated or conveyed to the City, the County or other public entity.  The financing 
district shall be responsible for any and all costs, fees, charges, and expenses incurred 
by the coordinating district in providing the administrative services and the operation 
and maintenance services.   
 
Capital and Operations Costs Pledge Agreement 
The District and District No. 1 entered into a Capital and Operations Costs Pledge 
Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2021, and pursuant to which the District and District No. 
1 agreed to evidence the amount of $301,608 as the District’s allocable amount as set 
forth in the Cost Sharing IGA and agreed that the agreement constitutes an 
indebtedness or multiple fiscal year financial obligation pursuant to Article X, Section 20 
of the Colorado Constitution. That amount will accrue interest at a simple interest rate of 
6% per annum until paid. The District agreed to impose a mill levy of fifty (50) mills, 
subject to change and the limitations of applicable law, including the District’s electoral 
authorization. The District’s obligations under the agreement will not terminate until the 
amount is paid in full. 
 
Assignment of and Second Amendment to Capital Improvements Pledge 
Agreement 
On November 9, 2022 the District entered into an Assignment of and Second 
Amendment to Capital Improvements Pledge Agreement with District No. 1 and No. 3.  
This agreement assigns all rights and obligations relating to the Capital Improvements 
Pledge Agreement as amended dated June 15, 2020 from District No. 1 to District No. 4 
and amends the term “Payment Obligation” to include applicable interest equal to 
District No. 4’s Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021A.  Additionally the 
agreement amends paragraph 4(b) to establish project costs and the proposed 
allocation, including applicable interest equal to District No. 4’s bond interest rate.  It 
also amended paragraph 4(c) to require District No. 4 to notify District no. 3 of its 
determination of the amount of Project Costs allocable to District No. 3 upon to the 
award of any contract for construction of the Improvements and to require interest equal 
to District No. 4’s bond interest rate.   
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Note 6 Tax, Spending, and Debt Limitation 
Article X, Section 20 of the Colorado Constitution, the Taxpayer’s Bill of Rights 
(TABOR), contains several limitations, including revenue raising, spending abilities, and 
other specific requirements of state and local governments.  TABOR is complex and 
subject to judicial interpretation.  The District believes it is in compliance with the 
requirements of TABOR. 
 
Spending and revenue limits are determined based on the prior year’s fiscal year 
spending adjusted for allowable increases based upon inflation and local growth.  Fiscal 
year spending is generally defined as expenditures plus reserve increases with certain 
exceptions.  Revenue in excess of the fiscal year spending limit must be refunded 
unless the voters approve retention of such revenue.   

TABOR requires local governments to establish emergency reserves, which must be at 
least 3% of fiscal year spending, excluding bonded debt service.  Local governments 
are not allowed to use the emergency reserves to compensate for economic conditions, 
revenue shortfalls or salary or benefit increases.  As of December 31, 2022, the District 
did not have an emergency reserve as all operations are the responsibility of Lakes 
Metropolitan District No. 1. 

Note 7 Risk Management 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disaster.  
The District is a participant in the Colorado Special District Association Property and 
Liability Pool.  The Pool was formed by an agreement by member special districts of the 
Special District Association as a separate and independent governmental and legal 
entity pursuant to the provisions of Article XIV, Section 18(2) of the Colorado 
Constitution and Sections 29-1-201 et. seq., 8-44-101(1)(c) and (3), 8-44-204, 24-10- 
115.5, and 29-13-102, C.R.S, as amended.  Membership is restricted to Colorado 
special districts which are members of the Special District Association. 
 
The purpose of the Pool is to provide defined property, liability, workers’ compensation, 
and associated coverages, and claims and risk management services related thereto, 
for member special districts through a self-insurance pool.  The Pool has contracted 
with other third parties to operate, administer and manage the Pool.  In the event 
aggregated losses incurred by the Pool exceed amounts recoverable from the 
reinsurance contracts and capital and surplus accumulated by the Pool, additional 
contributions may be required from the Pool members.  Settled claims have not 
exceeded the District’s commercial coverage in the last three years. 
 
Note 8 Related Parties 
Multiple members of the Board of Directors are officers or employees of owners (or 
affiliated entities) of property within the District. These members may have conflicts of 
interest with respect to certain transactions which come before the Board. 
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Note 9 Authorized but Unissued Debt 
At December 31, 2022 the District has authorized but unissued debt for the following 
purposes: 
 

Purpose

Principal Amount 

Voted at 2014 

Election

Principal Amount of 

Voted Authorization 

Allocated to Bonds

Principal Amount of 

Voted Debt 

Authorization 

Remaining from 2014 

Election

Street 80,000,000$             9,698,706$               70,301,294$             

Parks and Recreation 80,000,000               2,866,876                 77,133,124               

Water 80,000,000               2,305,650                 77,694,350               

Sanitation / Storm 

Sewer 80,000,000               5,208,768                 74,791,232               

Public Transportation 80,000,000               -                           80,000,000               

Mosquito Control 10,000,000               -                           10,000,000               

Safety Protection 80,000,000               -                           80,000,000               

Fire Protection 80,000,000               -                           80,000,000               

Television Relay / 

Translation 80,000,000               -                           80,000,000               

Security 80,000,000               -                           80,000,000               

TOTAL PUBLIC 

IMPROVEMENTS 730,000,000             20,080,000               709,920,000             

Operations and 

Maintenance 80,000,000               -                           80,000,000               

Refunding 80,000,000               -                           80,000,000               

Intergovernmental 

Agreements 80,000,000               -                           80,000,000               

Private Agreements -                           -                           -                           

In-District Special 

Assessments -                           -                           -                           

GRAND TOTAL 970,000,000$           20,080,000$             949,920,000$           

The maximum total aggregate principal amount of debt that may be issued or incurred 
by all of the District’s combined shall not exceed $120,000,000 without the prior 
approval of the Brighton City Council. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Other Supplemental Information 



 Original and 
Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues

Interest income 10,000$             318,885$           308,885$           

Total Revenue 10,000               318,885             308,885             

Expenditures

Operations

Accounting 20,000               3,064                 16,936               

Legal 20,000               37,320               (17,320)              

Bank charges -                         14,380               (14,380)              

Capital outlay 22,116,900        2,819,555          19,297,345        

Total Expenditures 22,156,900        2,874,319          19,282,581        

Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures (22,146,900)       (2,555,434)         19,591,466        

Other Financing Sources and (Uses)

Developer advances 2,940,590          -                         (2,940,590)         
Total Other Financing Sources and (Uses) 2,940,590          -                         (2,940,590)         

Net Change in Fund Balance (19,206,310)       (2,555,434)         16,650,876        
Beginning Fund Balance 19,206,310        19,108,422        (97,888)              
Ending Fund Balance -$                       16,552,988$      16,552,988$      

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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 Original and 
Final Budget  Actual 

 Variance 
Favorable 

(Unfavorable) 

Revenues

Property taxes 4,560$               4,552$               (8)$                     

Specific ownership taxes 273                    309                    36                      

Interest income 10,000               -                         (10,000)              

Total Revenue 14,833               4,861                 (9,972)                

Expenditures

Operations

Treasurer's fees 222                    68                      154                    

Trustee fees 4,000                 -                         4,000                 

Debt service

Bond interest 10,611               739                    9,872                 

Total Expenditures 14,833               807                    14,026               

Net Change in Fund Balance -                         4,054                 4,054                 

Beginning Fund Balance -                         -                         -                         
Ending Fund Balance -$                       4,054$               4,054$               

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4
Statement of Revenue and Expenditures and Change in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual - Debt Service Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Fee Resolutions 
(Concerning the Imposition of a Capital Facilities Fee and Concerning the Imposition of an 
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Electronically Recorded RECEPTIONS: 2023000054788, 
9/26/2023 at 1:41 PM, 1 OF 8, 
R E C : $48.00 
TD Pgs: 0 Josh Zygielbaum, Adams County, CO. 

After Recording, Return to: 
W H I T E B E A R A N K E L E T A N A K A & W A L D R O N 
2154 East Commons Avenue, Suite 2000 
Centennial, Colorado 80122 

R E S O L U T I O N 
O F T H E BOARD O F D I R E C T O R S 

OF T H E L A K E S M E T R O P O L I T A N D I S T R I C T NO. 4 

CONCERNING T H E IMPOSITION O F A N OPERATIONS F E E 

WHEREAS, The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 (the "District") is a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado, duly organized and existing 
pursuant to §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S., as amended (the "Special District Act"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(h), C.R.S., the Board of Directors of the District 
(the "Board") shall have the management, control, and supervision of all the business and affairs 
of the District; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined it to be in the best interests of the District, and the 
property owners, taxpayers, and residents within the District, and the general public, to acquire, 
construct, operate and maintain certain amenities and facilities benefitting property owners, 
taxpayers, and residents within the District, and the general public, which amenities and facilities 
generally include streets, alleyways, sidewalks and landscaping, improvements, facilities, 
appurtenances and rights-of-way (collectively, the "Facilities"); and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined it to be in the best interests of the District, and the 
property owners, taxpayers, and residents within the District, to provide certain services to the 
property owners, taxpayers, and residents within the District, and the general public, including 
without limitation, landscape maintenance, snow removal, and covenant enforcement 
(collectively, the "Services"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1 )(j)(I), C.R.S., the District is authorized to fix and 
impose fees, rates, tolls, penalties and charges for services or facilities furnished by the District 
which, until paid, shall constitute a perpetual lien on and against the property served; and 

WHEREAS, the District incurs certain direct and indirect costs associated with the upkeep, 
repair, replacement, improvement, reconstruction operation and maintenance of the Facilities, as 
necessary, inclusive of the costs of utilities and capital replacement costs (collectively, the 
"Facility Costs") in order that the Facilities may be properly provided, operated and maintained; 
and 

WHEREAS, the District incurs certain direct and indirect costs associated with the 
provision of the Services in order that the Services may be properly provided, the property within 
the District maintained, and that the health, safety and welfare of the District and its inhabitants 
may be safeguarded (collectively, the "Service Costs"); and 

WHEREAS, the establishment and continuation of a fair and equitable fee (the 
"Operations Fee") to provide a source of funding to pay for the Facility Costs and the Service 

1611.0007: 1337917 



Costs, (collectively, the "Operations Costs"), which Operations Costs are generally attributable 
to the persons and/or properties subject to such Operations Fees, is necessary to provide for the 
common good and for the prosperity and general welfare of the property owners, taxpayers, and 
residents within the District, and the general public and for the orderly and uniform administration 
of the District's affairs; and 

WHEREAS, the District finds that the Operations Fee, as set forth in this Resolution, is 
reasonably related to the overall cost of providing the Facilities and Services and paying the 
Operations Costs, and that imposition thereof is necessary and appropriate. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board as follows: 

1. DEFINITIONS. Except as otherwise expressly provided or where the context indicates 
otherwise, the following capitalized terms shall have the respective meanings set forth below: 

"District Boundaries" means the legal boundaries of the District, as the same are 
established and amended from time to time pursuant to the Special District Act, as more 
particularly set forth in the map and legal description attached hereto as Exhibit B and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

"Due Date" means the date by which the Operations Fee is due, which Due Date is 
reflected on the Schedule of Fees. 

"End User" means any third-party homeowner or tenant of any homeowner occupying or 
intending to occupy a Residential Unit. 

"Fee Schedule" or "Schedule of Fees" means the schedule of fees set forth in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, until and unless otherwise 
amended and/or repealed. 

"Lot" means each parcel of land established by a recorded final subdivision plat, as may 
be amended, and which is located within the District Boundaries. 

"Residential Unit - Duplex - Alley" means each residential dwelling unit (including, 
without limitation, paired homes, and duplexes) located on a Lot within an alley area and 
which has been Transferred to an End User. 

"Residential Unit - Single Family Detached" means detached single family dwelling 
units located on a Lot which has been Transferred to an End User. 

"Residential Unit - Single Family Detached - Alley" means detached single family 
dwelling units located on a Lot within an alley area and which has been Transferred to an 
End User. 



"Transfer" or "Transferred" shall include a sale, conveyance or transfer by deed, 
instrument, writing, lease or any other documents or otherwise by which real property is 
sold, granted, let, assigned, transferred, exchanged or otherwise vested in an End User. 

"Vacant Lot" means each parcel of land within the District established by a recorded final 
subdivision plat, but specifically excluding any parcel upon which one or more Residential 
Unit-Duplex and/or Residential Unit - Single Family Detached is situated and specifically 
excluding any parcel owned by the District. 

2. OPERATIONS F E E . 

a. The Board has determined, and does hereby determine, that it is in the best 
interests of the property owners, taxpayers, and residents within the District, and the 
general public to impose, and does hereby impose an Operations Fee to fund the Operations 
Costs. The Operations Fee is hereby established and imposed in an amount as set forth by 
the District from time to time pursuant to the "Fee Schedule" and shall constitute the rate 
in effect until such schedule is amended or repealed. The Fee Schedule is set forth in 
Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. The Operations Fee 
shall consist of a recurring payment that begins at the time of transfer to an End User (the 
"Recurring Payment") and a separate payment imposed on the Transfer of a Residential 
Unit - Duplex and Residential Unit - Single Family Detached to an End User (the 
"Transfer Payment"), which together shall comprise the Operations Fee. 

b. The Transfer Payment shall be imposed on all Transfers of a Residential 
Unit - Duplex and Residential Unit - Single Family Detached to an End User. The 
Transfer Payment shall not apply to any of the following, except to the extent the District 
determines that such exception is being undertaken for the purpose of improperly avoiding 
the Operations Fee: 

i. Any Transfer within the United States, or any agency or 
instrumentality thereof, the State of Colorado, any county, city and county, 
municipality, district or other political subdivisions of this State, is either the 
grantor or the grantee. 

i i . Any Transfer by document, decree or agreement partitioning, 
terminating or evidencing termination of a joint tenancy, tenancy in common or 
other co-ownership; however, if additional consideration or value is paid in 
connection with such partition or termination the Transfer Payment shall apply and 
be based upon such additional consideration. 

iii . Any Transfer of title or change of interest in real property by reason 
of death, pursuant to a will, the law of descent and distribution, or otherwise. 

iv. Any Transfer made and delivered without consideration for the 
purpose of: confirming, correcting, modifying or supplementing a Transfer 
previously made; making minor boundary adjustments; removing clouds of title; or 
granting easements, rights-of-way or licenses. 



v. Any decree or order of a court of record quieting, determining or 
resting title, except for a decree of foreclosure. 

vi. Transfers to secure a debt or other obligation, or releases other than 
by foreclosure, which is security for a debt or other obligation. 

vii. Transfers pursuant to a decree or separation of divorce. 

c. The Board has determined, and does hereby determine, that the Operations 
Fee is reasonably related to the overall cost of providing the Services, and paying the 
Operations Costs, and is imposed on those who are reasonably likely to benefit from or use 
the Facilities and Services. 

d. The revenues generated by the Operations Fee will be accounted for 
separately from other revenues of the District. The Operations Fee revenue will be used 
solely for the purpose of paying Operations Costs, and may not be used by the District to 
pay for general administrative costs of the District. 

3. L A T E FEES AND INTEREST. Pursuant to § 29-1-1102(3), C.R.S., any 
Operations Fee not paid in full within fifteen (15) days after the scheduled Due Date will be 
assessed a late fee in the amount of Fifteen Dollars ($15.00) or up to five percent (5%) per month, 
or fraction thereof, not to exceed a total of twenty-five percent (25%) of the amount due. Interest 
will also accrue on any outstanding Operations Fees, exclusive of assessed late fees, penalties, 
interest and any other costs of collection, specially including, but not limited, to attorneys' fees, at 
the rate of 18% per annum, pursuant to § 29-1-1102(7), C.R.S. The District may institute such 
remedies and collection procedures as authorized under Colorado law, including, but not limited 
to, foreclosure of its perpetual lien. The defaulting property owner shall pay all fees and costs, 
specifically including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and costs and costs associated with the 
collection of delinquent fees, incurred by the District and/or its consultants in connection with the 
foregoing. 

4. PAYMENT. Payment for all Operations Fees, fees, rates, tolls, penalties, charges, 
interest and attorneys' fees shall be made by check or equivalent form acceptable to the District, 
made payable to "The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4" and sent to the address indicated on the 
Fee Schedule. The District may change the payment address from time and time and such change 
shall not require an amendment to this Resolution. 

5. L IEN. The Operations Fees imposed hereunder, together with any and all late fees, 
interest, penalties and costs of collection, shall, until paid, constitute a statutory, perpetual lien on 
and against the property served, and any such lien may be foreclosed in the manner provided by 
the laws of the State of Colorado for the foreclosure of mechanic's liens, pursuant to § 32-1-
1001(1)(j)(I), C.R.S. Said lien may be foreclosed at such time as the District, in its sole discretion, 
may determine. The lien shall be perpetual in nature (as defined by the laws of the State of 
Colorado) on the property and shall run with the land. This Resolution shall be recorded in the 
offices of the Clerk and Recorder of Adams County, Colorado. 



6. S E V E R A B I L I T Y . I f any portion of this Resolution is declared by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of 
any remaining portion of this Resolution, which shall remain in full force and effect. In addition, 
in lieu of such void or unenforceable provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this 
Resolution a provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision so that 
the resulting reformed provision is legal, valid and enforceable. 

7. T H E PROPERTY. This Resolution shall apply to all property within the District 
Boundaries, including, but not limited to, the property set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference, and any additional property included into the District after 
the date of this Resolution. 

8. E F F E C T I V E DATE. This Resolution shall become effective September 19, 2023. 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank. Signature Page Follows]. 



ADOPTED this 19th day of September, 2023. 

THE L A K E S METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4, 
a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado 

Officer of the District 

ATTEST: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

W H I T E B E A R A N K E L E TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys At Law 

General Counsel to the District 

Signature page to Resolution Concerning the Imposition of an Operations Fee 



E X H I B I T A 
T H E L A K E S M E T R O P O L I T A N D I S T R I C T NO. 4 

Schedule of Fees 
Effective September 19, 2023 

Schedule of Fees 

Fee Type Classifications Rate 

Operations Fee -
Recurring Payment 

Residential Unit - Single Family 
Detached $0/month 

Residential Unit - Duplex - Alley $51.00/month 

Residential Unit - Single Family 
Detached - Alley $65.00/month 

Vacant Lot $0/month 

The Due Date for each Operations fee is the 1st day of each month. 

Operations Fee -
Payment Due Upon a 

Transfer 

Residential Unit - Single Family 
Detached $200.00 per transfer 

Residential Unit - Duplex - Alley $200.00 per Transfer 

Residential Unit - Single Family 
Detached - Alley $200.00 per Transfer 

Vacant Lot $0.00 per Transfer 

The Due Date for each Operations Fee—Payment Due Upon Transfer is the date upon 
which the Transfer occurs. 

PAYMENTS: Payment for each fee shall be made payable to The Lakes Metropolitan District 
No. 4 and sent to the following address for receipt by the Due Date: 

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 
c/o Marchetti & Weaver, L L C 
245 Century Circle, Suite 103 

Louisville, CO 80027 
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RESOLUTION 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4 

CONCERNING THE IMPOSITION OF A CAPITAL FACILITIES F E E 

WHEREAS, The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 (the "District") was formed pursuant 
to §§ 32-1-101, et seg., C.R.S., as amended, by order of the District Court for Adams County 
("County"), Colorado, and after approval of the District's eligible electors at an election; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(h), C.R.S., the Board of Directors of the District 
(the "Board") shall have the management, control and supervision of all the business and affairs 
of the District; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined it to be in the best interests of the District, and the 
property owners, taxpayers, and residents of the District, to finance, acquire, construct, install, 
repair, replace, improve, reconstruct, operate and maintain certain public improvements, amenities 
and facilities within or otherwise serving and benefitting the property owners, taxpayers and 
residents of the District, which public improvements, amenities and facilities generally include 
street, water, sewer, park and recreation, landscaping improvements, facilities, appurtenances and 
rights-of-way (collectively, the "Facilities"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(j)(I), C.R.S., the District is authorized to fix and 
impose fees, rates, tolls, penalties and charges for services, programs or facilities furnished by the 
District which, until such fees, rates, tolls, penalties and charges are paid, shall constitute a 
perpetual lien on and against the property served; and 

WHEREAS, the District incurs or will incur certain direct and indirect costs associated 
with the financing, acquisition, construction, installation, repair, replacement, improvement, 
reconstruction, operation and maintenance of the Facilities, as necessary, inclusive of the costs of 
utilities and capital replacement costs (collectively, the "Capital Facility Costs") in order that the 
Facilities may be properly provided and maintained; and 

WHEREAS, the revenue derived from the District's current ad valorem property taxes is 
insufficient to pay the Capital Facility Costs; and 

W H E R E A S  , the establishment of a fair and equitable fee (the "Capital Facilities Fee") to 
provide a source of funding to pay for the Capital Facilities Costs, which are generally attributable 
to each Lot (defined below), and other property in the District, is necessary to provide for the 
common good and for the prosperity and general welfare of the District and its inhabitants; and 

WHEREAS, the District finds that the Capital Facilities Fee, as set forth in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, as may be amended from time to time 



by the Board, is reasonably related to the overall cost of providing the Facilities and paying the 
Capital Facilities Costs, and that imposition thereof is necessary and appropriate. 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board as follows: 

1. DEFINITIONS. Except as otherwise expressly provided or where the context indicates 
otherwise, the following capitalized terms shall have the respective meanings set forth below: 

"District Boundaries" means the legal boundaries of the District, as the same are 
established and amended from time to time pursuant to §§32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S., as more 
particularly set forth in the map attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by 
this reference. 

"Due Date" means the date by which each Capital Facilities Fee is due, which Due Date 
is reflected on the Fee Schedule. 

"End User" means any third-party homeowner or tenant of any homeowner occupying or 
intending to occupy a Residential Unit. 

"Fee Schedule" means the schedule of fees set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference, until and unless otherwise amended and/or repealed. 

"Lot" means each lot established by a recorded final subdivision plat, as may be amended, 
and which is located within the District Boundaries. 

"Residential Unit - Duplex" means each single family attached residential dwelling unit 
(including, without limitation, paired homes and duplexes and any other attached single 
family dwelling units) located within the District. 

"Residential Unit - Single Family Detached" means each detached single family 
residential dwelling units located within the District 

"Residential Unit - Townhome" means each single family attached residential dwelling 
unit (including, without limitation, condominiums and townhomes and any other attached 
single family dwelling units) located within the District. 

"Responsible Party" means the owner or owners of a Lot before it is transferred to an End 
User, and if the Responsible Party consists of more than one party, then the obligation to 
pay the Capital Facilities Fee is the joint and several obligation of all of the parties 
constituting the Responsible Party. 

"Transfer" or "Transferred" shall include a sale, conveyance or transfer by deed, 
instrument, writing, lease or any other documents or otherwise by which real property is 
sold, granted, let, assigned, transferred, exchanged or otherwise vested in a tenant, tenants, 
purchaser or purchasers. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following shall not be 
considered a "Transfer," "Transferred" or "Transferring" for purposes of this definition: 



(i) a conveyance to secure a debt or obligation (or a release, reconveyance, or foreclosure 
of any such security); or (ii) any conveyance that The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4, 
in its sole and absolute discretion, determines should not trigger the payment of the Capital 
Facilities Fee. 

"Vacant Lot" means each lot within the District established by a recorded final subdivision 
plat, but specifically excluding any parcel upon which one or more Residential Units is 
situated and specifically excluding any parcel owned by the District. 

2. CAPITAL FACILITIES FEE. 

a. A one-time Capital Facilities Fee is hereby established and imposed upon each 
Residential Unit and each Commercial Unit within the District Boundaries. 

b. The Capital Facilities Fee shall be in the amount, and due and owing as 
outlined in Exhibit A. The amount of each Capital Facilities Fee due under this Resolution 
may be adjusted from time to time in the Board's discretion and shall be at the rate in effect 
at the time of payment. 

c. The Board does hereby determine that the Capital Facilities Fee is 
reasonably related to the overall cost of providing the Facilities, and is imposed on those 
who are reasonably likely to benefit from or use the Facilities. 

d. The revenues generated by the Capital Facilities Fee will be accounted for 
separately from other revenues of the District. The Capital Facilities Fee revenue will be 
used solely for the purpose of paying Capital Facilities Costs (including the repayment of 
any indebtedness of the District used to pay Capital Facilities Costs), and may not be used 
by the District to pay for general administrative costs of the District. This restriction on 
the use of the Capital Facilities Fee revenue shall be absolute and without qualification. 

3. L A T E F E E S AND INTEREST. Pursuant to § 29-1-1102(3), C.R.S., any Capital 
Facilities Fee not paid in full within fifteen (15) days after the scheduled due date will be assessed 
a late fee in the amount of Fifteen Dollars ($ 15.00) or up to five percent (5%) per month, or fraction 
thereof, not to exceed a total of twenty-five percent (25%) of the amount due. Interest will also 
accrue on any outstanding Capital Facilities Fee, exclusive of assessed late fees, penalties, interest 
and any other costs of collection, specially including, but not limited, to attorney fees, at the rate 
of 18% per annum, pursuant to § 29-1-1102(7), C.R.S. The District may institute such remedies 
and collection procedures as authorized under Colorado law, including, but not limited to, 
foreclosure of its perpetual lien. The defaulting Responsible Party shall pay all fees and costs, 
specifically including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and costs and costs associated with the 
collection of delinquent fees, incurred by the District and/or its consultants in connection with the 
foregoing. 

4. PAYMENT. Payment for all fees, rates, tolls, penalties, charges, interest and 
attorney fees imposed pursuant to this Resolution shall be made by check or equivalent form 



acceptable to the District, made payable to the "The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4" and sent 
to the address indicated on the Fee Schedule. The District may change the payment address from 
time to time and such change shall not require an amendment to this Resolution. 

5. L I E N . The fees imposed pursuant to this Resolution, together with any and all late 
fees, interest, penalties and costs of collection, shall, until paid, constitute a statutory, perpetual lien 
on and against the property served, and any such lien may be foreclosed in the manner provided 
by the laws of the State of Colorado for the foreclosure of mechanic's liens, pursuant to § 32-1-
1001(1)(j)(I), C.R.S. Said lien may be foreclosed at such time as the District, in its sole discretion, 
may determine. The lien shall be perpetual in nature (as defined by the laws of the State of 
Colorado) on the property and shall run with the land. This Resolution shall be recorded in the 
offices of the Clerk and Recorder of the County. 

6. SEVERABILITY. If any portion of this Resolution is declared by any court of 
competent jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of 
any remaining portion of this Resolution, which shall remain in full force and effect. In addition, 
in lieu of such void or unenforceable provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this 
Resolution a provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision so that 
the resulting reformed provision is legal, valid and enforceable. 

7. PREPAYMENT OF FEES. The District may enter into agreements for the 
prepayment of Capital Facilities Fees, in its sole and absolute discretion. 

8. THE PROPERTY. This Resolution shall apply to all property within the District 
Boundaries, including, but not limited to, the property set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference, and any additional property included into the District after 
the date of this Resolution. 

9. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Resolution shall become effective September 19, 2023. 

Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank 



ADOPTED this 19th day of September, 2023. 

THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4, 
a quasi-municipal corporation and political 
subdivision of the State of Colorado 

Officer of the District 

ATTEST: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

WHITE B E A R A N K E L E TANAKA & WALDRON 
Attorneys At Law 

General Counsel to the District 

[Signature Page to Resolution Concerning the Imposition of Capital Facilities Fee] 



After Recording, Return to: 
W H I T E B E A R A N K E L E T A N A K A & W A L D R O N 
2154 East Commons Avenue, Suite 2000 
Centennial, Colorado 80122 

EXHIBIT A 
THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4 

Fee Schedule 
Effective September 19, 2023 

Fee Schedule 

Fee Type Classifications Rate 

Capital Facilities Fee* 

Residential Unit - Single Family 
Detached 

$2,000 / Residential Unit - Single Family 
Detached 

Residential Unit - Townhome $1,500/Residential Unit - Townhome 

Residential Unit - Duplex $2,000/Residential Unit - Duplex 

Other Residential Unit Not Otherwise 
Denoted (including Multi-Family) 

50% of Residential Unit Single Family 
Detached 

•As of September 19, 2023. Amount to increase by 5% on January 1, 2025, rounded to the nearest twenty-five dollars 
($25.00), and increased by 5%, compounded, on each January 1 thereafter. 

The Due Date for each Capital Facilities Fee is the earlier to occur of: 1) the date of the initial Transfer of a Lot to a 
Responsible Party; or 2) the issuance of a certificate of occupancy for each Residential Unit - Duplex or Residential 
Unit - Single Family Detached. 

The Capital Facilities Fee shall be due and payable by the Responsible Party, in full, to the District, on the Due Date. 

PAYMENTS: Payment for each fee shall be made payable to The Lakes Metropolitan District 
No. 4 and sent to the following address for receipt by the Due Date: 

The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4 
c/o Marchetti & Weaver, L L  C 
245 Century Circle, Suite 103 

Louisville, CO 80027 



EXHIBIT B 

THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4 

District Boundaries 



THE LAKES METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 4 



 

 
 

EXHIBIT E 

Special Warranty Deed 
 



E l e c t r o n i c a l l y R e c o r d e d R E C E P T I O N # : 2 0 2 3 0 0 0 0 5 9 1 3 4 , 
1 0 / 1 9 / 2 0 2 3 a t 8 : 4 2 A M , 1 O F 1 , 
R E C : $ 1 3 . 0 0 D o c S t a m p : $ 0 . 0 0 
T D P g s : 0 J o s h Z y g i e l b a u m , A d a m s C o u n t y , C O . 

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
T h e L a k e s M e t r o p o l i t a n D i s t r i c t N o . 4 
c / o V i n t a g e H o m e s a n d L a n d , L L C 
2 0 0 W , H a m p d e n A v e n u e , S u i t e 2 0 1 
E n g i e w o o d , C O 8 0 1 1 0 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

THIS DEED, Made this 18th day of October, 2023, between Farmiore, Ltd., a Coiorado 
corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of 
Colorado, Grantor, and the The Lakes Metropolitan District No. 4, a quasi-municipal 
corporation and political subdivisions of the State of Colorado having its address at c/o 
Vintage Homes and Land, LLC,. 200 W. Hampden Avenue, Suite 201, Englewood, Colorado 
80110 of the County of Arapahoe and State of Colorado, Grantee: 

WITNESSETH, That the Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars and 
NO/100 DOLLARS ($10.00), the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, 
has granted, bargained, sold and conveyed, and by these presents does grant, bargain, 
sell, convey and confirm, unto the Grantee, its heirs, successors and assigns forever, all 
the real property, together with improvements, if any, situate, lying and being in the County 
of Adams, State of Colorado, described as follows: 

Tracts F, G, K, L, T, U, V, W, X, AA, BB, CC, FF, JJ, KK, LL, PP and QQ 
as shown on the Final Plat of Farmlore North Filing No. 1 City of Brighton, County of Adams, 
State of Colorado 

also known by street and number as: VACANT LAND to be known by the following 
addresses: 

Tract F – 2028 Chambers Road, Brighton, CO 80601 
Tract G – 2053 S ,  19th Avenue, Brighton, CO 80601  
Tract K – 2070 Barnwood Drive, Brighton, CO 80501 

Tract L – 2064 Conservation ALY, Brighton, CO 80601 
Tract T – 1676 Farmstead Street, Brighton, CO 80601 
Tract U – 2204 Farmlore Drive, Brighton, CO 80601 
Tract V – 1757 Bloom Street, Brighton, CO 80601 
Tract W – 2054 Farmlore Drive, Brighton, CO 80601 
Tract X – 1732 Farmstead Street, Brighton, CO 80601 

Tract AA – 2056 Chambers Road, Brighton, CO 80601 

Tract BB – 2017 Farmlore Drive, Brighton, CO 80601 
 

 

 

Tract CC – No address - Private ALY's Block 9 
Tract FF – 1263 Raindrop ALY, Brighton, CO 80601  
Tract JJ – 2018 Farmlore Drive, Brighton, CO 80601 
Tract KK – 1267 Farmstead Street, Brighton, CO 80601 
Tract LL – No address – Private ALY's Block 1 
Tract PP – 1205 Farmstead Street, Brighton, CO 80601 

Tract QQ – 1275 Upper Farmlore Circle, Brighton, CO 80601 

The surface estate is owned separately from the underlying mineral estate and the entire mineral estate is hereby 
excluded. 
TOGETHER with all its appurtenances and warrants the title to the same against all persons claiming under Grantor 
except general taxes for the current year and subsequent years, and subject to statutory exceptions, and excluding all 
underlying minerals, mineral rights, and mineral estate. 

The singular number shall include the plural, the plural the singular, and the use of any gender shall be applicable to all 
genders. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused Its name to be hereunto subscribed by its President the day and year first 
above written. 

 

FARMLORE, LTD, 

a Colorado corporation 

By: 
Michael A. Richardson 

P r e s i d e n t of Farmlore, Ltd., a Colorado corporation. 

State of Colorado 

County of Arapahoe 

) 
) s  s 
) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged to before me this 18th day of October, 2023 by Michael A. Richardson as 
resident

W i t n e s s m y h a n d a n d o f f i c i a l s e a l . 
M y c o m m i s s i o n e x p i r e s : 4 / 2 6 / 2 0 2 5 

N o t a r y P u b l i c PAULA J. LINDAMOOD 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF COLORADO 
NOTARY ID 1993400060000 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 04/26/2025 
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